DIRECTORS’ REPORT- FY 2020-21

The Members,
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(erstwhile Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Thirteenth Annual Report of vour Company together

with the Audited Accounts and Auditor's Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

Financial Highlights

(Amount in Rs. '000")

PARTICULARS 2020-2021 2019 - 2020
Revenue from Operations 9,11,449 7,53,396
Other Income 11,569 6,783
Proﬁt/l.oss .before Depreciation, Finance Costs, 7,01,007 5,68,653
Exceptional items, and Tax Expense

Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 7.840 8,869
g;iﬁ;; i :;)esrisl:efore Finance Costs, Exceptional items, and 6,.93.166 5,59,784
Less: Finance Costs 6,106,239 5,23,384
Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax Expense 76,927 36,400
Add/(less): Exceptional items - -
Profit /loss before Tax Expense 76,927 36,400
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 19,167 11,493
Profit /loss for the year (1) 57,760 24,906
Total Comprehensive Income/loss (2) 1,177 -1,573
Total (1+2) 58,937 23,333
Balance of profit /loss for carlier years 2,719.276 2,78,966
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - -
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserves 11,552 5,893
Less: Transfer to Impairment Reserves 35,978 15,557
Less: Share Issue Expenses (net of tax) - 1,593
Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares - -
Less: Dividend paid on Preference Shares - -
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Balance carried forward 2,90,683 2,79,276

State of Company affairs

During the vear under review, vour Company increased most of the operating and financial parameters.

Revenues of the Company were up 21% to Rs. 91.14 Cr. (PY Rs. 75.34 Cr.) and PBT substantially increased
by 111% to Rs. 7.69 Cr. (PY Rs. 3.64 Cr.) - and after payment of Rs 1.92 Cr. (PY Rs. 1.15 Cr.) in current

and deferred taxes and tax on debenture issue expenses, PAT increased 132% to Rs. 5.78 Cr. (PY Rs. 2.49

Cr.).

In terms of lending operations, cumulative housing loan sanctions aggregated Rs. 1573.55 Cr. (up 18%

from Rs. 1330.96 Cr. at end of the previous financial year) — all to lower income, urban families who 11}/"
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generally excluded from the mainstream banking sector. The total loans outstanding figure was Rs. 814.88
Cr. (growth of 18% over Rs. 691.60 Cr. at end of the previous financial year). The Company currently
operates in 8 states — Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, West Bengal, Chhattisgarh, Tamil
Nadu, and a recent entry during the vear into Orissa.

In terms of portfolio quality, the Company had 334 (PY 241) loan accounts as on year end - March 31,
2021 - which were classified as non-performing assets (“NPAs”) per the prudential guidelines issued by
the RBI / NHB. The amount of such Gross NPAs was Rs. 14.43 Cr. (PY Rs. 11.05 Cr.) which was 1.77%
(PY 1.60%) of the total loan portfolio of the Company as at March 31, 2021. The Company has created
necessary provisions in accordance with the RBI & NHB Directions, after which Net NPAs stood at
Rs. 12.24 Cr. (PY Rs. 9.10 Cr.) and 1.50% (PY 1.32%) of the total loan portfolio as at March 31, 2021.

In terms of funding, the Company issued Equity Shares of Rs. 15 Crores and converted 30,00,000
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) amounting to Rs. 30 Crores to 75,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10 each at a Premium of Rs. 30/- per share, and with retained proﬁts, net worth increased
to Rs. 167.50 Cr. (PY Rs. 146.60 Cr.). [However, the Company increased its long-term debt to Rs. 758.03
Cr. (PY Rs. 570.17 Cr.) of which approx. 20% continues to be refinance support from the NHB. Other
lenders to your Company include the largest nationalized bank, State Bank of India; the leading private
sector housing finance provider, HDFC Ltd; commercial banks such as HDFC Bank Ltd., Kotak Mahindra
Bank Ltd., DCB Bank Ltd., Yes Bank Limited, ICICI Bank Limited, Federal Bank Limited, Corporation
Bank, Karnataka Bank I.td., United Bank of India, Dhanlaxmi Bank Limited, The South Indian Bank
Limited, Andhra Bank Limited, AU Small Finance Bank Limited, IndusInd Bank Limited, Canara Bank
and Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited; NBFCs such as Tata Capital Iinancial Services Limited and the
leading development agency, the International Finance Corporation (“IFC”). The Company’s entire loan
portfolio continues to qualify as priority sector as defined by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). Based on
our excellent relationships with our current bankers and the company’s financial and portfolio performance

we are confident of arranging additional debt to cover projected growth plans.

The Company is very well capitalised with capital adequacy ratio at 36.57% of risk weighted assets, as

against the minimum requirement of 14%.

Change in the nature of Business.

There was no change in the nature of business during the year.

Share Capital

® The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on 31 March 2021 was Rs. 85 Crores. During
the year under review, the Company increased the Authorised Capital by addition of 1,90,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs. 19 Crores.

® The paid-up share capirtal of the Company as on 31* March 2021 was Rs. 41.48 Cr. During the
year under review, the Company has issued 37,50,000 Equity Shares and also converted 30,00,000
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) amounting to Rs. 30 Crores to 75,00,000
Equity Shares.

The details are as tollows:

Particulars Issue of Equity Shares Conversion of CCPS
Amount Rs. 15 Crores Rs. 30 Crores

Date of issue 08.09.2020 NA

Date of allotment 07.10.2020 30.01.2021

Method of allotment Rights Issue
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Issue price Rs. 40/- Rs. 40/-
Conversion price NA 2 CCPS of Rs. 100 cach fully

paid-up shall be  convertible
into 5 Lquity Shares of
Rs. 10 each fully paid up (Face
value per Equity Share of Rs.
10/- Plus Premium of Rs. 30/-

per share).

Your company has issued and allotted 400 rated, unlisted, senior, redeemable, taxable, non-convertible
debentures denomimated each having a face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Lakh) aggregating
to a face value of Rs. 40,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Forty Crore) to State Bank of India under the Targeted
Long-Term Repo Operations (1T TRO) Scheme of the Reserve Bank of India, the details of which are as

follows:
Amount raised Rs. 40,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Forty Crore)
Date of issue July 30, 2020
Date of allotment July 30, 2020
Method of allotment | Private Placement
Issue price Rs. 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Lakh) per debenture
Coupon Rate 9.65% Coupon per annum
Maturity Date 21+ April , 2023
Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013,

since incorporation.

Business Risk Management

The Company has a well-defined risk management policy and framework in place (which includes
management of credit risk, market risk and operational risk), and has established procedutres to periodically
place before the Risk Management Committee, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, the risk
assessment and minimisation procedures being followed, and steps taken to mitigate these risks. The Risk

Management Policy is approved annually by the Board of Directors.

Annual Return

The Annual Return in Form MGT-7 is available on the Company’s website at
https://svatantramh fc.com/corp()rateinformation.

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives

Your directors confirm that in line with the mandatory requirements of the new Companies Act, vour
Company had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee on March 16, 2015 (which was
reconstituted on September 24, 2018, due to the change in the Board of Directors) and has also established
a formal CSR Policy in accordance with the Act.

However, while the CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is
i compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of your Company, it is to be noted that the Company has
not spent the required amount per the new Companies Act which has specified that 2% of the average net

profits in the last 3 financial years to be spent on CSR activites. For the year ended March 31, 2(121,:95.,—_::::::;._




amount was Rs. 18.49 lakhs, and the Company spent Rs. 9.29 lakhs (details per “Annexure A”), which is a
shortfall of Rs. 9.21 lakhs. As per the new CSR Rules under the Companies Act, if the company fails to
spend the CSR amount specified and has identified any CSR Initiatives as “Ongoing Projects” as defined
the CSR Rules, then it has to transfer the said unspent CSR Amount in a separate Bank Account.
Consequently . the Company had identified two CSR Initatives as Ongoing Project and transferred the

unspent amount of Rs. 9.25 lakhs to a separate Bank Account on April 28, 2021.

Particulars under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013

I. Particulars of Employees:

SMITFC had 310 employees as of March 31, 2021. The Company does not have any employee
whose particulars are required to be furnished under Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

[S8]

Conservation of Iinergy & Technical Absorption:

The Company is not a manufacturing company, hence, the disclosures pertaining to conservation
of energy and technology absorption stipulated in Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, are

not applicable to vour company during the vear under review.

3. Foreign Fxchange:
During the year under review, there were no foreign exchange earnings. The Company has paid
USD 5000 (Equivalent Rs. 3,72,750/-) as a monitoring fee to the International Finance Corporation
(IFC) the holders of Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) amounting to Rs. 53.10 Crores issued

by the Company.

Dividend

Your Directors feel that it is prudent to plough back the profits for future growth of the Company and do

not recommend any dividend for the vear ended 31+ March 2021.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements
relate and the date of the report.

Due to the second wave of the pandemic COVID-19, all the field operations of the Company were
suspended during the period of lockdown imposed in the various states in which the Company operates.
In terms of  the Reserve Bank  of  India Circular ~ No.s RBI/2021-22/31
DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 and RBI/2021-22/32 DOR.STR.REC.12/21.04.048/2021-22
dated May 5, 2021, the Company took the measures to mitigate the same by providing a special window
for resolution of assets undergoing stress due to COVID-19 disruption under its Board Approved
Resolution Framework 2.0 for COVII-19 Related Stress of Individuals and Small Businesses and COVID-
19 Related Stress of MSMEs, respectively.

The management has, at the time of approving the financial statements, assessed the potential impact of
the COVID-19 on the Company. Barring any future COVID-19 related escalations, based on the current
assessment, the management is of the view that impact of COVID-19 on the operations of the Company

and the carrying value of its assets and liabilities is not likely to be material.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations in future.
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the operations of the Company in the future.

Compliance of Applicable Laws and Secretarial Standards

The Board of Directors hereby declare that the Company is in compliance of the provisions of the

applicable provisions of sccretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

The provisions of Section 186(11) and 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 requiring disclosure of
particulars of the loan given, investments made, and guarantee given, or securities provided are not

applicable to the company.

Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under Section 143(12):

During the year under review, no instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or
employees were reported by the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditor under Section 143(12) of the

Companies Act, 2013 to the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors of the Company.

Details of subsidiary/joint venture /associate company

The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate, nor has entered into any joint venture with any
organization.

Reserves

The Company proposes to transfer the entire Profit after Tax amounting to Rs. 5,77,60,350/- to General

Reserves, out of which further statutory appropriations will be made.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy was approved by the Board at its Meeting held on 22nd
October 2014 with effect from 1% January 2015. The main purpose of the Policy is to deal with instances
of fraud and mismanagement, if any, and to protect any person who makes a good faith disclosure of

suspected wrongful conduct or violations of the Company’s Code of Ethics. The Vigil Mechanism/

Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the website of the Company at https://svatantramhfe.com/policies.

Directors/Key Managerial Personnel

® Re-appointments
Ms. Ananyashree Birla, Director, retiring by rotaton and being eligible, offers herself for

reappointment. The Board recommends her reappointment for your approval.

® Resignations:

There were no resignations during the year under review.

® Appointments:

There were no appointments during the year under review.

® Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board conducted a formal annual evaluation
of its own performance and that of its commirttees and individual directors through a structured
questionnaire comprising vartous criteria broadly based on: (1) Knowledge to perform the role; (ii) Time

and level of participation; (iii) Performance of duties and level of oversight; and (iv) Professional conducf,




The reports were scrutinized by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

® Remuneration Policy

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy
for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management, and their remuneration. The Salient
features of the Nomination & Remuneration Policy are given in “Annexure B”. The complete Policy can
be found ar Company’s website at hetps://svatantramhfc.com/home.

® Meetings

During the year, 10 Board Meetings, 5 Audit Committee Meetings, 2 Nomination & Remuneration
Committee Meetings and 2 CSR Commirtee Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the

same are given in the “Annexure C”.

The 121 Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 18" December 2020 and the 15" and 16™
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting were held on 13" August 2020 and 8* Seprember 2020, respectively.
® Composition of the Committees:

> The Audit Committee was reconstituted by the Board on 24t September 2018. The Members of
the Audit Committee are:

1. Ms. Ananvashree Birla

19

Mzr. Vineet Chattree

e

Mr. Anil Chirania

> The Nomination and Remuneration was reconstituted by the Board on 24% September 2018. The

Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are:

1. Ms. Ananyashree Birla

12

Mr. Vineet Chattree

3. Mr. Anil Chirania

> The CSR Committee was reconstituted by the Board on 24t September 2018. The Members of
the CSR Committee are:

Ms. Ananvashree Birla

19

Mr. Vineet Chattree

(s

Mr. Anil Chirania

Auditors

> Statutory Auditor:

M/s Suresh Surana & Associates LLLP were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company at the
11 Annual General Meeting held on 30" September 2019 for a term of five consecutive years
from the conclusion of the 11" Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 16" Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and need no further
explanation.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditor’s Report which require any

clarification/explanation. B
S NAR Y
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> Secretarial Auditor:

Ms. Jyotsana Bhatia, Practicing Company Secretary, (IFCS No.: 8867 and Certificate of Practice No. 7985)
has been appointed as the Secrctarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2020-21, in terms of Section 204

ot the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.

Secretarial Audit Report

The report of the Secretarial Auditor is enclosed as “Annexure D” to this Report.

There are no qualifications  or adverse remarks in the Auditor’s Report which require any
clarification/ explanation.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In terms of Section 134 (3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, we, the Directors of Svatantra Micro Housing
Finance Corporation Limited, state in respect of Financial Year 2020-21 that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accountng policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company
for that period;

¢) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company has put in place an adequate internal control svstem to safeguard all assets and ensure
operational efficiency. The Company also has an internal auditor to conduct the testing of the Internal
Financial Control along with the ongoing internal audits, covering all aspects of operations, and adherence
to internal policies and procedures as well as to regulatory and legal requirements. The Internal Financial
Controls Testing Report dated May 28, 2021, as submitted by the Internal Auditor of the Company was
reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on
June 14, 2021. The internal audit reports are reviewed regulatly by the Audit Committee of the Board, and
wherever necessary, internal control systems are strengthened, and corrective actions are immediately

taken.

Regulations

In terms of regulatory requirements, the Company complies with the Master Direction — Non-Banking
Financial Company — Housing inance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 prescribed by the
Reserve Bank of India and the applicable circulars prescribed by the NHB. The Company has issued
comprehensive Know Your Customer (“KYC”) Guidelines and Ant Money Laundering Standards and
adopted the Fair Practices Code framed by the RBI which seeks to promote good and fair practices in

dealing with customers.




Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy named “Policy Against Sexual Harassment”
in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, A “Cumplniﬂt Redressal Committee” has been set up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All emplovees (permanent, contractual, temporary,
trainees) are covered under this policy.

Under Section 21 of the Prevention of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preventon, Prohibiton and Redressal) Rules, 2013, the
Annual Report for the calendar year ended 31+ December 2020 was submitted to the Board as well as the

District Officer on January 28, 2021, containing the following information:

1. No. of Complaints received during the year: NII.

2 No. of Complaints disposed of during the veat: NIL

3. No. of cases pending for more than ninety days: NIL

i No. of worksh(‘)ps or awareness programs against sexual 5
harassment carried out:

5. Nature of action taken by the employer or District Ofticer: NA

Disclosure on Non-Convertible Debentures

The Company is pleased to report that, during the year under review, the largest nationalized bank - State
Bank of India under the Targeted Long-Term Repo Operations (TLTRO) Scheme of the Reserve Bank of
India, has subscribed to and been allotted 400 rated, unlisted, senior, redeemable, taxable, non-convertible
debentures denominated in Indian Rupees cach having a face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten

Lakh) aggregating to a face value of Rs. 40,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Forty Crore).

The International Finance Corporation, which is a member of the World Bank Group, and the largest
global development institution focused exclusively on the private sector in developing countries, has
subscribed to long term Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) on Private Placement basis of Rs. 53.10
Cr issued by the Company under a program to support affordable housing finance companies that have a

focus on small and micro loans.

As per Para 68 of the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, (Guidelines on Private Placement of Non-Convertible Debentures
(NCDs))the Company shall disclose, in a statement, the following:

1. The total number of non-convertible debentures which have not been claimed by NIL
the Investors or not paid by the housing finance company after the date on which
the non-convertible debentures became due for redemption;

)

The total amount in respect of such debentures remaining unclaimed or unpaid NIL
beyond the date referred to in clause (1) as aforesaid

Credit Rating

Your Company’s financial discipline and prudence is reflected in the strong Credit ratin
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Rati
Instrument ating Rating Amount Remarks
Agency
Long-Te Bank Stabl
ongTierm - BAE ) CRIsIL A s, 550 Crores rable
Loan Facilities
Short-T b Stable
rort-Tesm Dbk | b regy Add Rs: 100 Croves table
Issue
NCD Issue CRISIIL. A+ Rs. 128.10 Cr. Stable
lLong-Te Bank
ong-lemm - BAIE | CARE CARE A+ Rs. 350 Cr Stable
Facilities

Related Party Transactions

As per requirement of the National Housing Bank (NIB) Notification No. NHB. HIFC. CG-DIR.1/MD
& CEO/2016 dated 9" February 2017, The Board of Directors has adopted the Related Party Transactions
Policy (“RPT”) w.e.f. June 1, 2017 (duly approved by the Board at its meeting held on May 29, 2017). The
objective of this policy and procedure is to ensure that transactions between SMHFC and its related parties
are based on principles of transparency and arm’s length pricing as provided under the section 188 of the
Companies Act 2013. Likewise, this policy aims at preventing and providing guidance in situations of
potential conflict of interests in the implementation of transactions involving such related parties. The

Related Party Transactions Policy is given in “Annexure E”.

During the vear under review the Company has not entered into any transactions/ Contracts with the
related parties falling under the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made

thereunder.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR)

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is presented in “Annexure F”,

which is a part of this report.

Other disclosures:

a)  Your Company has not issued any shares with differential rights or sweat equity shares.
b) There i1s no revision in the financial statements both standalone and consolidated.

¢) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-

section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company.

d) Your Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

¢) The Company, in the capacity of Financial Creditor, has not filed any applications with National
Company Law Tribunal under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 during the financial year

2020-21 for recovery of outstanding loans against any customer.

f) The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement
and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the

reasons thereof is not applicable to your Company.
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“Annexure A”

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIALYEAR 2020-21

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 135(1) of the Companies act 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors has constituted a CSR Committee. The Board has also

tramed a CSR policy in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act 2013,
In line with CSR Policy and in accordance with Schedule VIT of the Act, the Company proposes to
undertake suitable projects in the field of education, women empowerment, humanitarian relief, sanitation,

preventive healtheare.

The objective of the company’s CSR policy is to lay down guiding principles for proper functioning of CSR

activities to attain sustainable development of the nearby society.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

SI. Name of Director Designation/ Number of Number of
No. Nature of meetings of CSR meetings of CSR
Directorship Committee held Committee attended
during the vear during the year
) Chairman &
1. Ms. Ananvashree Birla . 2 0
’ Director
: Managi
2 Mr. Vineet Chattree L .nngmg 2 2
Director
3. Mr. Anil Chirania Director 2 2

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company.

https:/ /svatantramhfc.com

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibilityPolicy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report).

Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for
the financial year, if any.
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Financial Year

Amount available for set-offfrom

Amount required to be set- off

No. preceding financial years (in Rs) | for the financial year, if any (in
Rs.)
i N.A NIL NIL
TOTAL NIL NIL

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

Rs. 9,24,86,852/-

Rs. 18,49,737/-

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

(b)Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years.

NIL

(c)Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any

NIL

(d)Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c).

Rs. 18,49,737/-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial vear:
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount transferred to [ Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Total Amount Spent for | Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
the Financial Year. section 135(6). 135(5).
(in Rs.) Name of the
Amount Date of transfer Amount Date of transfer
Fund
Rs. 9,29,000/- Rs. 9,25,000/- 28-04-2021 N.A. NIL N.A.
(b)Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial vear:
M | @ ) @ [ © 1M 8) 9 (10) (11)
Amount
transtfcrrcd Mode of
(4]
Item fi Am le
tc,m. o Amount ()u|.1t Unspent Erogy f.mc Mode of
the list of | Local . spent in ntation ;
. Name of e ) Project | allocated CSR Implementation —
Sk activities in area Location of X the current
the . duratio | for the . Account for Through
No. Project Schedule (Yes/ | theproject. X . financial h 5 - Imol .
roject. VIIto the No). n. pro}];.ct (in Yeur i t (_ {)r()]t.(.t Direct mp (.ﬂ;l(.t"ltlng
Act. s:)- Rs.). s p.(.r (Yes/No Agency
Section )
135(6) (in 4
Rs.).
ICSR
State | District Name .Registrat
10N
number




Promoting
© N,
employment Gl
cuh'(mdng \IH) T
vocation abitat for
\Vocational | . RJ, 04 - _ . ‘ .
1. _OL. ; o skills and Yes ! I'BD Rs. 4,50,000 N1L Rs. 4,50,000 [No Humanity [NA
['raining ) IWB, imonths s
undertaking G India Trust
livelthood - ’
| N,
enhancement
1 . ncemen OR
projects
Promoting
employment
enhancing
. . vocation Saath
Vocatonal | : < . 24 - . o . - .
| skills and Yes G I'BD Rs. 4,75,000 [NTL. Rs. 4,75,000 [No [ivelthood [N.A
['raining . : months 5 s
lundertaking Services
livelihood
lenhancement
[projects
TOTAL Rs.9,25,000 INIL Rs. 9,25.000
Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
M| @ (3) @| ) (6) (7) (8)
Item from Mode of implementation —
) Loca . ; Mode of| ; ;
the list of Location of the project. : . [Through implementing
L larea Amount spent |implementati
SI. |Name of the |activities in : agency.
. (Yes forthe project |on -
No. |Project schedule : . CSR
VII to th / (in Rs.). Direct . .
tothe No). [State - District (Yes/No). Name A
Act. number
Rajasthan -
Jaipur,  Ajmer,  Alwar,
Jodhpur, and Nagaur.
Chhattisgarh-
_ Raipur, Durg,
M:‘wk, , IPreventive e Rajnandgaon, Rs. 7.29.000/-  [No I?csni . N\
Distribution [Healthcare Mahasamund, Barmer) Foundation
Ratgarh, Bilaspur,
Mungeh, Korba, Surguja)
Bemetara and Kabirdham
Gujarat - Ahmedabad
Surat and Valsad
Imployment
lenhancing
[Training for vocational Habitat for
: _,l ' l}‘ ! ) . Andhra Pradesh - i ' . " :
2, I'inancial skills and No i Rs. 2,00.,000 No Humanity N\
) o \isakhapatnam o
Literacy livelihood [ndia Trust
lenhancement
projects
TOTAL Rs. 9,29.000/-




(<)
NIL

(d)

(e)

Rs. 9,29,000/-

®

Excess amount for set off, if any:

Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable:
N.A.

Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e):

Particular

Amount (in Rs.)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

Rs. 18,49,737/-

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Rs. 9,29,000/-

(i) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(i1)-(1)] NIL
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes ot activities of the NIL
previous tinancial years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial vears |(iii)-(iv)] NIL
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
SI. | Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund [ Amount
No. | Financial Year. | transferred to spent in the | specified under Schedule VII as per | remaining to
Unspent CSR reporting section 135(6), if any. be spent in
Account under Financial Name succeeding
section 135 (6)(in | Year(in of the | Amount (in| Date of financial years.
Rs.) Rs.). Fund Rs). transfer. (in Rs.)
1 N.A. N.A N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
TOTAL N.A. N.A N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s):

M @ |3 4) (5) (6) (7 ®) (%)
SL. Project Name of | Financial |Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
No. ID. the Year duration. | amount spent on the | amount spent | project -
Project. in allocated | projectinthe | at the end of Completed
which the for the reporting reporting /Ongoing.
project project Financial Financial
was (in Rs.). | Year (in Year. (in Rs.)
commenc Rs).
ed.
1. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
TOTAL | N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A




10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
N.A.

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capitalasset.
NIL

(c¢) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.

N.A.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address

and location of the capital asset).
N.A.

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5).

The Company has approved CSR expenditure of Rs. 18,49,737 (Le. two percent of the average net profit

of the last three financial years) for the financial year 2020-21.

The Company could not spend the spectfied CSR amount as it was stll in the process of determining
specific activities and identifying specific partners that would be aligned with your Company’s CSR Policy.

The unspent fund will be utilized in next three Financial Years in line with the CSR Regulations.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Vineet Chattree
Managing Director & Chairman - CSR Committee
(DIN: 07962531)

Place: Mumbai

Date: 03 August, 2021



SVATANTRA MICRO HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
SALIENT FEATURES OF THE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

SCOPE

The CSR Policy applies to the formulation, execution, monitoring, evaluation, and documentation of CSR

activities undertaken by the Company.
OBJECTIVE

The main objective of SMHFC’s CSR policy is:
® To lay down guidelines to make CSR a key business process for sustainable development of the
society (in addition to the social mission of the Company);
® ‘Lo directly/indirectly undertake projects/programs which will enhance the quality of life and
economic well-being of the communities in the society at large;

® To generate goodwill and recognition among all stake holders of the company.
CSR AMOUNT AND EXPENDITURE

The Annual budget for the CSR Expenditure will be proposed by the CSR committee every vear for the
approval of the Board of Directors of the Company & post the Board of Director's approval, the CSR

Expenditure can be incurred by the Company.

The committee shall endeavour to spend at least 2% of the average net profit during the preceding 3
financial years on CSR activities as enumerated in this CSR Policy and in the manner as specified in Section

135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder from time to time.
GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR SELECTION OF CSR ACTIVITIES

SMHFC shall conduct its CSR activities as laid down in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and as
approved by the CSR Committee of the Company. The Company’s focus will be related to improvement
in living conditions as related to housing or support of institutions working with families in poor housing

and financial education as these are very much related to the mission of SMHFC.
GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF CSR ACTIVITIES

SMHEFC may directly undertake the CSR activities as permitted under Schedule VII and approved by the
CSR Committee or execute and implement CSR activities through any other Implementing Agency
registered in India, having a valid CSR Registration Number granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) and having track record of service, performance, governance, and accountability.

CSR COMMITTEE

CSR Committee of Board of Directors has been formed in pursuance of the Section 135 of Companies Act,
2013. The Committee will play the following role in fulfilling the Company’s CSR objectives:
e Review and recommend the CSR Policy to the Board of Directors

e Recommend the amount of annual expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities;




® Review and recommend to the Board, certain CSR projects/programmes as ongoing projects in
accordance with the CSR Rules;

e Formulate and recommend to the Board the Annual Action Plan of the Company in pursuance of this
Policy;

e Annually report to the Board, the status of the CSR activities and contributions made by the Company;

e  Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of Directors
or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

ANNUAL ACTION PLAN

The CSR Committee shall formulate an Annual Action Plan for each financial vear and recommend the

same to the Board for its approval.
PROCESS FOR IMPLEMENTING CSR ACTIVITIES / PROJECTS

The following procedure is required to be adhered to while undertaking/ funding CSR activities:

® The CSR contribution would be for a project as identified by the Company, either for a single financial
year or as an ongoing project for mult-vears, depending on the scale and needs of the project.

® The disbursement of the contribution amount by the Company to the Implementing Agency shall be
made only if they have a unique CSR registration number granted by the MCA and requisite approvals
and registrations as required under the Income Tax Act, 1961 or other applicable laws in India; and

® The disbursement will be made only upon receipt of a proposal from the Implementing Agency
specifying the budget that is required, activity for which it is required and project outputs & outcomes,

as may be required.
MONITORING AND EVALUATION FRAMEWORK

The Company shall be entitled to receive the following information from the Implementing Agencies:

e A valid CSR Registration Number granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA);

e A valid Registration Certificate under Section 12A of the Income-tax Act;

e A valid Registration Certificate under Section 80G of the Income-tax Act;

® Proof to substantiate a track record of 3 years in undertaking CSR activities such as annual reports, etc.;
e Operational / progress reports either quarterly or half yearly, depending on the size and scale of the

project.

To ensure steady progress and proper utilization of CSR amount, the following monitoring mechanism may
be adopted depending upon the size of contribution and the Implementing Agency:

® Review of Funds Utilisation Certificates submitted by the Implementing Agencies.

e The Chief Financial Officer of the Company or any other person responsible for financial management

shall certify the utilisation of funds disbursed for CSR projects for each financial year.
REPORTING

The CSR Committee shall report to the Board of Directors of the Company, the status of the CSR projects/

undertaken by the Company in the Annexure to the Directors” Report, in the Company’s Annual Report.




“Annexure B”?
SVATANTRA MICRO HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Salient Features of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
L Obijective of the Policy:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section

178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto. The Key Objectives of

the Committee would be:

To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel and Senior Management.

® To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluation of the Board.

® Torecommend to the Board on Remuneration pavable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Sentor Management.

® To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their
effort, performance, dedication, and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

® Toretain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial

persons and create competitive advantage.
2. Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to determine the following:

Appointment criteria and qualifications of Director, KMP and Senior Management;
Term / Tenure of the Directors;

Evaluation of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel;

Removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel;

Retirement of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

Remuneration to Whole-time / Pxecutive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel:

® Remuneration to Other employees

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

N0 Ctiaso
Anil Chirania

Director

(DIN: 01082719)

neet attree

Managing Director
(DIN: 07962531)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 August, 2021



"Annexure C"

Disclosures as per the Secretarial Standard - 1

During the Financial Year 2020-21, 10 Board Meetings, 5 Audit Committee, 2 Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and 1 CSR Committee Meeting were convened and held on the following

dates:

s | Nommaions ][5, [ con

No. No. | Committee No. ; No. | Committee
Committee

1 22.05.2020 | 19.06.2020 | 22.05.2020 l 19.06.2020

2 19.06.2020 2 19.08.2020 9 25.03.2021 2 25.03.2021

3 28.07.2020 3 14.12.2020

4 19.08.2020 4 21.12.2020

5 08.09.2020 5 300.01.2021

6 20.10.2020

7 14.12.2020

8 21.12.2020

9 30.01.2021

10 25.03.2021

Attendance of Directors in Board and Committee Meetings:

Number of Meetings Attended:

Sr. . L
Nr Name of the Director Audit Nommatmr_l & .

0. Board . Remuneration CSR Committee

Committee g
Committee

1 Ananyashree Birla 3 1 0

2 Anil Chirania 10 5 2 2

3 Vineet Chattree 10 5 2 2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Vineét Chattree
Managing Director
(IDIN: 07962531)

Place: Mumbat

Date: 03 August, 2021

Anil Chirania

Director

(DIN: 01082719)




"Annexure D"

JYOTSANA BHATIA A/2A, SAINIK NAGAR, UTTAM NAGAR,

Company Secretary NEW DELHI- 110059.
Mobile :9811678082
E-mail :Jyotsanab01@gmail.com

FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2021
[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited,
Oftice No. 1,2,3,4, Pushpak CHSL,

Malaviya Road, Vile Parle (E),

Mumbai - 400 057

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation
Limited (hereinafter called (“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that

provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial year
ended on 31" March, 2021 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31" March 2021, according to the
provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)y 'The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and By-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)  Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

National Housing Bank Act, 1987;

The Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010;

Guidelines on Know your Customer and Anti-Money Laundering Measures;

Returns to be submitted by Housing Finance Companies;

Guidelines for Asset Liability Management System in Housing Finance Companies;

& ok ko =

Housing Finance Companies Issuance of Non-convertible Debentures on private
placement basis (NHB) Directions, 2014;
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JYOTSANA BHATIA A/2A, SAINIK NAGAR, UTTAM NAGAR,
Company Secretary NEW DELHI- 110059.

Mobile :9811678082
E-mail :Jyotsanab01@gmail.com

7. Housing Finance Companies - Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank)
Directions, 2016;

8. Housing Finance Companies - Auditor’s Report (National Housing Bank) Directions,
2016;

9. Guidelines on Fair Practices Code for Housing Finance Companies;

10. Guidelines on Reporting and Monitoring of Frauds in Housing Finance Companies;

11. Information Technology Framework for HFCs — Guidelines;

12. Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. There were no changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors during the period under review.

Adequate notice was given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance except where the meeting was held at a short notice to
transact urgent business, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

As per the minutes duly recorded and signed, all decisions at Board Meetings and Committee
Meetings are carried out unanimously.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with

the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations, and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the Company has:

[}

Issued and allotted 400 rated, unlisted, senior, redeemable, taxable, non-convertible debentures
denominated each having a face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Lakh) aggregating
to a face value of Rs. 40,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Forty Crore) to State Bank of India under
the Targeted Long-Term Repo Operations (I'LTRO) Scheme of the Reserve Bank of India.
Issued and allotted 37,50,000 (Thirty-Seven Lakh Fifty Thousand only) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each fully paid up for cash at a premium of Rs. 30/-(Rupees Thirty
Only) per share to Svatantra Holdings Private Limited.




JYOTSANA BHATIA A/2A, SAINIK NAGAR, UTTAM NAGAR,

Company Secretary NEW DELHI- 110059.
Mobile :9811678082
E-mail :Jyotsanab01@gmail.com

3. Converted 30,00,000 Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees
Hundred Only) each into 75,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each at a
premium of Rs. 30/- (Rupees Thirty only) per Share to Svatantra Holdings Private Limited.

4. Increased the Authorised Capital from Rs. 66 Crores to Rs. 85 Crores by addition of 1,90,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs. 19 Crores.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure I and forms an
integral part of this report.

fhabe

Jyotsana Bhatia

(Practicing Company Secretary)
FCS No.- 8867
CP No - 7985

UDIN: F008867C000726397
Place: Mumbai
Date: 03.08.2021



JYOTSANA BHATIA A/2A, SAINIK NAGAR, UTTAM NAGAR,

Company Secretary NEW DELHI- 110059.
Mobile :9811678082
E-mail :Jyotsanab01@gmail.com

Annexure - I to the Secretarial Audit Report
To,
The Members,
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited,
Office No. 1,2,3,4, Pushpak CHSL,
Malaviya Road, Vile Parle (E),
Mumbai - 400 057

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as are appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that
the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, the Company has provided the certified copies or extracts of the records
and documents. I have also relied upon the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards are the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

Jyotsana Bhatia
(Practicing Company Secreta
Membership No.- 8867

Certificate of Practice No - 7985

UDIN: F008867C000726397
Place: Mumbai
Date: 03.08.2021



“Annexure E”
Related Party Transactions Policy
OBJECTIVE

"The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation (“SMHFC”), had
adopted the following policy (the “policy”) and procedures with regard to Related Party Transactions
(“RPT7) w.e.t. June 1, 2017 (duly approved by the Board at its meeting held on May 29, 2017). This policy
is framed as per requirement of the National Housing Bank (NIB) Notification No. NHB. HFC. CG-
DIR.1/MD & CEO/2016 dated 9t February 2017. The objective of this policy and procedure is to ensure
that transactions between SMHFC and its related parties are based on principles of transparency and arm’s
length pricing as provided under the section 188 of the Companies Act 2013. Likewise, this policy aims at
preventing and providing guidance in situations of potential conflict of interests in the implementation of

transactions involving such related parties.

1. DEFINITTIONS:

a) “Audit Committee” means Committee of Board of Directors of SMHEC constituted under Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) “Related Party” shall mean a person or entity that is related to the company as defined under Section
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013.

¢) “Related Party Transaction™ shall mean all transactions as defined under section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013

d) “Arm’s Length Transaction” means a transaction between two Related Parties that is conducted as if
they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest (as provided under the section 188 of the
Companies Act 2013).

¢) “Annual Consolidated Turnover” is defined as Total Income (i.e. Interest earned plus Other Income)

of the last audited Consolidated Financial Statements of SMITFC.,

2. POLICY:
All Related Party Transactions must be referred to the Audit Committee for approval in accordance with
this Policy.

3. IDENTIFICATION OF RELATED PARTY AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

A Related Party will be brought to the attention of the Management and the Board/ Audit Committee’s
attention by the Legal and Secretarial Department at least on an annual basis. The Legal and Secretarial
Department needs to inform any change in the Related Party List to Functional teams of SMHFC to
identify the Related Party Transactions.

4. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Every Related Party Transaction shall be subject to the prior approval of the Audit Committee whether
at a meeting or by resolution by way of circulation. Any member of the Audit Committee who has a
potential interest in any Related Party Transaction shall abstain from discussion and voting on the approval
of the related party transaction.

The approval policy framework is given below:
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Audit Committee Board Approval Shareholder's

Approval Approval
e All Related Party ® Related Party Transactions | ®  Approval by resolution for:
Transactions referred by Audit

> Related Party Transactions
Committee for appr(_n‘al of

not in Ordinary Course of
the Board. -

. ) Business or not on arm's
® Related Party Transactions

) length basis and crosses
as required under the

. threshold limit as prescribed
statute applicable to

SMHEFC.

under the Companies Act,
2013 applicable to SMHFEC

General Guidance for approval of Related Party Transactions:

The Audit Committee shall be provided with the relevant information of Related Party Transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made thereunder as amended

from time to time or as requested by the Audit Committee. Where a Board approval 1s required, the

3
information required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, shall be provided.
[n determining whether to approve a Related Party Transaction, the Audit Committee shall consider
(among other aspects it deems relevant), if there are clearly demonstrable reasons from SMHFC’s business

point of view, to enter into a transaction with a Related Party.

5. DECISION REGARDING TRANSACTTION IN ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS AND AT
ARM’S LENGTH:
The Audit Committee and the Board shall, after considering the materials placed before them, will judge

if the transaction is in the ordinary course of business and meets the arm’s length requirements.

6. OMNIBUS APPROVAL BY AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
In case of certain frequent/ repetitive/ regular/ transactions/ with Related Parties which are in the ordinary
course of business of SMHFC, the Audit Committee may grant an omnibus approval for such Related
Party Transactions proposed to be entered into by SMHFEC. The approval shall be valid for a period of

one year - however the same needs to be ratified by the board at the next board meeting,

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NOT APPROVED UNDER THIS POLICY:

[n the event SMHFC becomes aware of a Related Party Transaction with a Related Party that has not been
approved under this Policy prior to its consummation, SMIFC would obtain post facto approval from
the Audit Committee. In case SMHIC is not able to take prior approval from the Audit Committee, such
a transaction shall not be deemed to violate this Policy, or be invalid or unenforceable, so long as the
transaction is brought to the Audit Committee as promptly as reasonably practical after it is entered into
or after it becomes reasonably apparent that the transaction is covered by this policy.

The Audit Committee shall consider all of the relevant facts and circumstances regarding the Related Party
Transaction, and shall evaluate all options available to SMHFC, including ratification, revision, or
termination of the Related Party Transaction. In any case, where the Audit Committee determines not to
ratify a Related Party Transaction that has been commenced without approval, the Audit Committee, as

appropriate, may direct additional actions including, but not limited to, immediate discontinuation
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rescission of the transaction. In connection with any review of a Related Party Transaction, the Audit

Committee has authority to modify or waive any procedural requirements of this Policy.

8. DISCLOSURE OF THE POLICY:
This Policy will be uploaded on the website of SMHFC at https://svatantramhfc.com/home.php.

9. POLICY REVIEW:

This Policy is established w.e.f. June 1, 2017 based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as
per requirement of the NHB Notification No. NHB. HFC. CG-DIR.1/MD & CEO/2016 dated 9
February 2017. In case of any subsequent changes in the provisions of the Act and the Rules framed
thereunder, the Act and its Rules would prevail over the Policy and the provisions in the Policy would be
modified in due course to make it consistent with law. The Board shall have the right to amend the Policy
from time to time, based on recommendations of Audit Committee. The Policy shall be reviewed every
year along with the other policies of the company. However, it shall be reviewed earlier if need arises for

the same and/ or under special circumstances, for example a change in law.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

N,

Anil Chirania \\.\Q’,-«.,';,T\w__,"\’f;:‘-_,_.’?
_ ) 4+ © P
Director N T

(DIN: 01082719)

Vineet Chattree
Managing Director
(DIN: 07962531)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 034 August, 2021



“Annexure F”

Management Discussion and Analysis Report - FY 2020-21

The year 2020-21 has been unique in many ways for all of us wherein we all faced challenge posed by
pandemic and related measures but at the same time the challenging times made us aware of many business-
related learnings as well as exceptional human qualities and possibilities. The pandemic also at the same
time underlined that pucca housing and related sanitation remains basic requirement to sustain health and

prevent the spread of such pandemics amongst masses in the future.

Let us begin with the overall economic and affordable housing finance overview followed by the
achievements of Svatantra Micro housing Finance Corporation Ltd (SMHFC) in the vear 2020-21.

Housing Finance Sector
The Affordable housing sector in India as always remains a function of the Market led aspects as well as
Government support / Regulatory landscape in India.

A: Demand and market size
The demand factors remain intact in India:

- Indiais the second most populous country with current population close to 1.3 bn and is urbanizing
faster than probably any other large country. The urban India is likely to be about 35% in 2015 and
expected to reach 50% by 2050 adding 416 million urban dwellers.

- The country faces a significant challenge in terms of creating adequate infrastructure including
housing for all. Significant shortage of homes already in urban India, close to 18.7 where about
17% population living in slums. In rural India (66 of population) the shortage of housing is close
to 44 million. About 20 million rural inhabitants staying in thatched roof and 65 million without
any permanent roof.

- Of the above economically weaker section (income p.a. upto Rs. 3 Lakh) accounts for close to 50%
in Urban and about 85% in rural and Low-Income group (income p.a. between 3 Lakh to 6 Lakh)
account for 45% in Urban and about 15% in rural India.

While Affordable housing finance may be loosely defined by some as HFCs providing loans for property
cost usually below INR 20 Lakhs, SMHFC cater to the lower strata of this market focusing primarily on
EWS and LIG segment.

B: Government support during FY21 (vear of pandemic)

Housing sector has been a key focus for the current government, which in its previous term launched many
initiatives under its mission of ‘Housing for all by 2022°. Many short term and long-term support were
extended during FY21 towards the support of Affordable housing sector, these included:

- COVID-19 related disruption was to be treated as force majeure under Real Estate (Regulation
and Development) Act provision and registration and project completion timelines would be
extended by 6 months /9 months, depending on which part of the country the project is being
constructed and if these were falling after March 25t 2020.

- Introduction of Affordable Rental Housing Complex (ARCH) for migrant workers. The scheme
is to be implemented through two models: Utlizing existing Government funded vacant houses
to convert into ARHCs through Public Private Partnership or by Public Agency and Construction,
Operation and Maintenance of ARHCs by Public/ Private Entities on their own vacant land.

- Extension of Credit Linked Housing Subsidy scheme for the middle-income group (annual Incon;m s

between Rs 0 and 18 lakhs) is to be extended till March 31, 2021.



- Anadditional outlay of Rs 18,000 crore for the urban housing scheme (PMAY-U). The allocated
amount is over and above the Budget istimates for 2020-21 (Rs 8,000 crore) for the PMAY-U and
will be through additional allocation and extrabudgetary resources.

- Increasing the differential between agreement value and circle rate from 10% to 20% (under section
43CA) ll June 30, 2021. However, it is only applicable for the primary sale of residential units of
value up to Rs 2 crore.

- Extension in the deadline for the Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme - ECLGS 2.0 until
March 31, 2021.

- RBI had also announced certain relaxations towards the Real Estate sector where - NBFCs can
extend commercial real estate loans by 1 year if projects delayed are due to reasons beyond the
control of promoters without treating it as restructuring.

- Many State Governments such as Maharashtra (reduction on stamp duty on registration), MP
(reduction of the cess on stamp duty charged for registration), Karnataka (reduction in stamp duty)
etc.

C: Regulatory Landscape

The year also saw the circulation of “Review of regulatory framework for Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs)” by RBI dated October 22, 2020, and the subsequent issuance of the Master Direction — Non-
Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 on February
17, 2021. The regulation aims at harmonization between the regulations of HFCs and NBFCs. SMHFC
adheres to all the revised guidelines as HFCs stated under the framework which addresses the Minimum
Net worth guidelines, Capital adequacy and definition of Tier I and II capital, Liquidity management
framework and defining the Qualifving asset criteria for HFCs.

Further, RBI, provided a moratorium window under COVID-19 — Regulatory Package Resolution
Framework for COVID-19-related Stress on August 6, 2020, to assist the borrowers impacted due to
pandemic. The resolution framework allowed customers to be provided a moratorium of three months on
payment of all instalments falling due between March 1, 2020, and May 31, 2020, which was further
extended for three months on payment of instalments falling due between June 1, 2020, and August 31,

2020, for the loans outstanding on 1% March 2020.

Subsequently, due to the second wave of the pandemic COVID-19, the RBI, vide Circular No.s RBI/2021-
22/31 and RBI/2021-22/32 dated May 5, 2021, took measures to assist the borrowers who had not availed
restructuring under Resolution Framework 1.0 above, by providing a spectal window for resolution of assets
undergoing stress due to COVID-19 disruption under its Framework 2.0 for COVID-19 Related Stress of
Individuals and Small Businesses and COVID-19 Related Stress of MSMEs, respectively, subject to certain
eligibility criterion.

Further, support was also extended to the HFCs through liquidity infusion via NIB, Partial guarantee
schemes and TIL.TRO.
D: Company petformance

D.1 Financial Performance

SMHFC primarily deals in the segment of providing housing loans for the financially excluded families. In
terms of lending operations, cumulative housing loan sanctions aggregated Rs. 1573.55 Cr. (up 18% from

Rs. 1330.96 Cr. at end of the previous financial year) — all to lower income, urban families who are gcng:ﬂ’i@f-
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excluded from the mainstream banking sector. The total loans outstanding figure was Rs. 814.88
Cr. (growth of 18% over Rs. 691.60 Cr. at end of the previous financial vear). The Company currently
operates in 8 states — Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, West Bengal, Chhattisgarh, Tamil

Nadu, and a recent entry during the year into Orissa.

In terms of portfolio quality, the Company had 334 (PY 241) loan accounts as on year end - March 31,
2021 - which were classified as non-performing assets (“NPAs”) per the prudential guidelines issued by
the RBI / NHB. The amount of such Gross NPAs was Rs. 14.43 Cr., (PY Rs. 11.05 Cr.) which was 1.77%
(PY 1.60%) of the total loan portfolio of the Company as at March 31, 2021. The Company has created
necessary provisions in accordance with the RBI & NHB Directions, after which Net NPAs stood at
Rs. 12.24 Cr. (PY Rs. 9.10 Cr.) and 1.50% (PY 1.32%) of the total loan portfolio as at March 31, 2021,

In terms of funding, the Company issued Equity Shares of Rs. 15 Crores and converted 30,00,000
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) amounting to Rs. 30 Crores to 75,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10 each at a Premium of Rs. 30/- per share, and with retained profits, net worth increased
to Rs. 167.50 Cr. (PY Rs. 146.60 Cr.). However, the Company increased its long-term debt to Rs. 758.03
Cr. (PY Rs. 570.17 Cr.) of which approx. 20% continues to be refinance support from the NHB. Other
lenders to your Company include the largest nationalized bank, State Bank of India; the leading private
sector housing finance provider, HDI'C Ltd; commercial banks such as HDFC Bank Ltd., Kotak Mahindra
Bank Ltd., DCB Bank Ltd., Yes Bank Limited, ICICI Bank Limited, Federal Bank Limited, Corporation
Bank, Karnataka Bank Ltd., United Bank of India, Dhanlaxmi Bank Limited, The South Indian Bank
Limited, Andhra Bank Limited, AU Small Finance Bank Limited, IndusInd Bank Limited, Canara Bank
and Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited: NBFCs such as Tata Capital Financial Services Limited and the
leading development agency, the International Finance Corporation (“IFC”). The Company’s entire loan
portfolio continues to qualify as priority sector as defined by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). Based on
our excellent relationships with our current bankers and the company’s financial and portfolio performance

we are confident of arranging additional debt to cover projected growth plans.

The Company is very well capitalised with capital adequacy ratio at 36.57% of risk weighted assets, as

against the minimuim requirement of 14%.

Customer segments break up:

Customer Segment No. of Loans Principal O/S %

Salaried 8.492 Rs. 291.41 35.76%
Self Employed 7,763 Rs. 310.30 38.08%
Both 4516 Rs. 202.17 24.81%
Builder Loan 5 Rs. 11.00 1.35%
Grand Total 20,776 Rs. 814.88 100%

The company provided adequate relief to its customers through moratorium and restructuring support in

the last Fiscal.
D.2 Credit Rating

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited is amongst the few entities in the NBFC/ HFC
space which has been upgraded by CARE and sustained by CRISIL at A+. This is a recognition of the

Governance, Fiscal prudence, and Parentage.




D.3 Current focus areas and Outlook
Incorporating the learnings from Pandemic, the company has taken upon the following restructuring and
improvements in the priority areas:

. Decentralization and local decision making to capture market and enhance service turn-around

time.

19

Unified team for various products : Affordable housing, BLLC, Retail loans, LAP, and commercial
property loans
3. Higher accountability and responsibility

4. Enhancement in technology towards better customer engagement

The company plans to enhance team size along with product basket. SMHFC plans to enhance team size
to about 350 - 380 employees (an addition of about 100+ employees over last year) to kick start deeper
penetration in existing markets. The plan is to target about 30% growth y-o-y in FY22 with higher
productivity.

Further, the company focusses on managing its credit risk through deeper client engagement and offering

adequate support within the resolution framework 2.0 provided by RBL

D.4 RISKS

(1) Liguidity and interest rate risk

Being a financial organisation, SMHFC is susceptible to market-related risks such as liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and funding risk. Such risk management relating to maturity mismatch of assets and liabilities,
interest rate gaps/ sensitivity is assigned to the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) to monitor these risks
on an ongoing basis. Being in a long-term funding business SMHFC maintains adequate balances of
undrawn lines and cash equivalents for disbursements, repayments, and other payments. This risk is

accentuated by extension of moratorium.

(if) Operational risk

SMHFC uses information technology extensively in its operations. The Company attempts to mitigate
operational risk by maintaining a system of internal controls, establishing systems and procedures to
monitor transactions, extensive employee training, mﬂintﬂining key back-up procedures, undcrtaking

regular contingency planning.

(111) Credit Risk

The Company manages credit risk by using a set of credit norms and policies, including a standard credit
appraisal policy. All functions of credit are managed in house right from sourcing, verification, credit
bureau checks. SMHEC has developed internal legal and technical evaluation team with independent

funcrion to make credit decisions more robust and in line to manage collateral risk.

Credit risks are minimized by having established credit appraisal system in place, prescribing exposure
limits, periodic review of the portfolio. SMHFC performs credit bureau checks, field verification, stringent
legal and technical due diligence etc. which have helped to reduce delinquencies. The recovery mechanism

1s now well established through recourse under the SARFAEST Act.
E. Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Company has put i place an adequate internal control system to safeguard all assets and ensure

operational cfficiency. The Company also has an internal auditor to conduct the testing of the Imc‘}gﬁ! =
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Financial Control along with ongoing internal audits, covering all aspects of operations, and adherence to
internal policies and procedures as well as to regulatory and legal requirements. The integrated Loan
Management System and the Accounting System has inbuilt maker checker systems in place for recording,
authorising transactions on the system. The Internal Financial Controls Testing Report and the internal
audit reports are reviewed regularly by the Audit Committee of the Board, and wherever necessary, internal

control systems are strengthened, and corrective actions are immediately taken.
F. Values of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

The company re-defined its integral value which are: Integrity, Trust, Customer Centricity, Passion,
Innovation and Teamwork. These values remain undetlying chord that joins all 310 of us to serve a

common objective which is to serve the housing finance needs of the underserved mformal segment in
the country.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

AL Lva—-e
Anil Chirania

Director
(DIN: 01082719)

Vineet Chattree
Managing Director
(DIN: 07962531)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 03 August, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members of

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limitad

{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance
Corporation Limited (“the Company~), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“financial statements®).

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 as amended (“Ind
AS") and other the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31 March 2021, the profit including other comprehensive incomne, the changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe thet the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Woe draw attention to Note 37 of the financial statements which describe the management's assessment of
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the financial result of the Company and estimates related to

impairment of assets, which are depsndent on future developments reggrgiug_me severity and duration of the
pandemic. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. Yy o

|
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Key Audit Matters

Chartered Accountants

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

| Sr. No.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed In our audit

1

" impairment of loans

Recognition and measurement of impairment
of loans and advances involve significant
management judgement.

Under ind AS 109, Financial Instruments,
allowance for loan losses are determined
using expected credit loss (ECL) estimation
model. The estimation of ECL on financial
instruments involves significant judgement
and estimates. The key areas where we
identified greater levels of management
judgement and therefore increased levels of
audit focus in the Company's estimation of
ECLs are:

Data inputs - The application of ECL modet
requires several data inputs. This increases
the risk of completeness and accuracy of the
data that has been used fto create
assumptions in the model.

Model estimations - Inherently judgmental
models are used to estimate ECL which
involves detarmining Probabilities of Default
("PD"), Loss Given Default ("LGD"), and
Exposures at Default ("EAD®). The PD and the
LGD are the key drivers of estimation
complexity in the ECL and as a result these
are considered as the most significant
judgmental aspect of the Company's
modelling approach.

Economic scenarios - Ind AS 109 requires
the Company to measure ECLs on an
unbiased forwardJooking basis reflecting a
range of future economic conditions.
Significant management judgement is applied

_in determining the economic scenarios used

and the probability weights applied to them
especiaily when considering the current
uncertain economic environment arising from
COViD-19.

Restructuring The Company has
restructured loans in the cumrent year on
account of COVID-19 related regulatory

Principal Audit Procedures

-Evaluation of the approprigteness of the
impairment principles used by management
based on the requirements of Ind AS 109, our
business understanding and industry practice,

-Understanding management's revised processes,
systems and controls implemented in relation to
impairment allowance process, particularly in view
of COVID-19 regulatory package.

-Evalueting management's controls over collation
of relevant information used for determining
estimates for management overlays on account of
COVID-19.

-Assessing the design and impiementation of key
internal financial controls over loan impairment
process used {o calculate the impairment charge.

-Using the specialist fo fest the model
methodology and reasonableness of assumpticns
used, including management overiays.

-Testing of review controls over measurement of
impairment allowances and disclosures in Ind AS
financial statements.

-Assessing the appropriateness: of management
retionale for determination of criteria for
Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR)
considering both: adverse effects of COVID 19
and mitigants in the form of the RBI / Govemment
financial relief package.

-Corroborate through independent check and
enquiries the reasonableness of management's
assessment of grading of severity of impact of
COVID-19 on segments of its loan portfolio and
the resultant impairment provision computed,

-Focus on appropriate application of accounting
principles, vﬁﬁﬂnas and accuracy
of the dala}; asndablness of assumptions

HE=N
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Chartered Accountant

measures. This has resulted in increased
management estimation over determination of
provision for such restructured loans.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of
our risk assessment, we determined that the
impairment of loans and advances to
customers has a high degree of estimation
uncertainty, with a potential range of
reasonable ouicomes greater than our
materiality for the financial statements as a
whole, and possibly many times that amount,

The disclosures (including disclosures
prescribed by RBI) regarding the Company’s
application of Ind AS 109 are key to
explaining the key judgements and material
inputs to the ind AS 108 ECL resuits.

Refer Note 2 (k), Note 5, Note 36 (c), Note 62
and Note 63 to the financial statements. '

2 IT systems and controls

Financial accounting and reporting processes,
especially in the financial services sector, are.
fundamentally reliant on IT systems and IT
controls to process significant transaction
volumes, hence we identified IT systems and

Controls over financial reporiing as a key

audit matter for the Company.

Automated accounting procedures and IT
environment controls, which include IT
governance, general IT controls over program
development and changes, to
programs and data and IT operations, are
required to be designed and to operate
effectively to ensure reliable financial
reporting.

[

used in the model.

-Test of details over of calcuiation of impairment
allowance for assessing the complsteness,
accuracy and relevance of data.

Model calculations testing
performance where possible.

through re-

-The  appropriateness of management's
judgments was also independently reconsidered
in respect of calculation methedologies,
segmentation, economic factors, and the period of
historical loss rates used and the valuation of
recovery assets.

-Assessed whether the disclosures on key
judgements, assumptions and quantitative data
with respect to impairment of loans (including
restructuring related disclosures) in the financial
statements are appropriate and sufficient.

Principal Audit Procedures

- We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Company's IT access
controls over the information systems that
are important to financial reporting and
various interfaces, configuration and other
identified application contrals.

- We tested IT general controls (logical |

access, changes management and
aspects of IT operational controls). These
included testing requests for access to
systems were reviewed and authorized.

- We tested the Company’s periodic review
of access rights. We also tested requests
of changes to systems for approval and
authorisation.

- In addition to the above, we tested the
design and operating effectiveness of
certain automated controls that were
considered as key internal controls over

financial reporting.

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our au c_ijwfﬁmpbn theraon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is & material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibllity for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a frue and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance (including other Comprehensive Income), changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for the safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other imregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, impiementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparetion and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the audit of the Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect & material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably. be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the financial statsment.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud -may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal confrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143 i'ﬁ“q Act, we are
aiso responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Comp ;_;?ar ate internal
|
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financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Director's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation, -

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be infiuenced, We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our awdit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ji) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intemal control that we identify during our audit.

Woa also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Govermment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure "A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as, it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows



d)

f)

Q)

h)

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

agreement with the books of account,

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021
from being appointed as & director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting; '

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(186) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has not paid or provided remunsration to its directors during the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Ruie 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements (Refer Note 41 to the financial statements);

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Suresh Surana & Associates & LLP
Chartered Accountants A
Firm's Registration No. 121750W/V-1 ooo( AN

Partner| ' N¥uwen
Membership No.: 102306 =
UDIN: 21102306AAAAD.J3051
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to In paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

(i

(in

(iii)

(iv)

\)

(vi)

(vily

of our report of even date)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property plant and equipment.

{(b) The Propesty plant and equipment have been physical verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. in our opinion, the
frequency of physicai verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
nature of its assets.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the arstwhile
name of the Company.

The Company is & Housing Finance Company, primarily engaged in the business of lending activities
for housing: purpose and does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (i) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Parinerships (LLPs} or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii}a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any transaction covered under Section 185 and 186 of Companies Act 2013. Accordingly,
the provisions of Clause 3{iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits during the year from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions of the Act and
the rules framed thersunder apply.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government
has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under Sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, goods and service tax, and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.
There are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues on account of sales
tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and
cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute
except the following:

Name of the Nature of the | Period to Amount Forum where
statute dues which the ( Rs."000) dispute s
amount relates pending
income Tax Act, | Demand of | Assessment 11,380 | Commissioner of |
1061 income tax Year 201 7-2018 A & "“3\ _ | Income Tax
= ﬁ'f""_'“‘“ \. (Appeals)
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

{viii) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks, financial institutions or debentures holders.
Further, the Company has not taken any loan or borrowing from government.

(ix} The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
Debt Instruments). Based on the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been
applied for the purposes for which the loans were obtained, though the idle funds which were not
required for immediate utilization have been temporarily invested in ||qu|d investments, payable on
demand but were ultimately utilized for the stated end use.

(x) To the best of knowledge and according fo the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by

the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees have baen noticed or reported
during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on owr examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi} The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934. However, the Company has registered with Reserve Bank of India as housing finance company.

For Suresh Surana & Associates & LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fir's Registration No. 121750WM-10001 A _“\

fk. \ ",.
’j“'?ﬂ'il il (i'h |]
Ramesi+G \

Partner | \5\“\% * /
Membership No.: 102306 —
UDIN: 21102308AAAADJ3051

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 July 2021



Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT.
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Wae have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance
Corporation Limited as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on, the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audiit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAF). These
responsibilities inciude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risic. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controis system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
extornal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accwrately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) ida_reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, usgff%‘aﬁi@n of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. /<", NCAN
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Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Inherent Limitations of Intemnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls
over financial reporting to further periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the palicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In-our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2021, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Iinternat Financial Control Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Suresh Surana & Associates & LLP

Chartered Accountants e
Firm's Registration No. 121750W/W-10001- 343;\\
S\
3{ cranmrea \2\)
< Actountants § 2 Il
Ramesh Gu \ 'S
Pariner %},*//
Membership No.. 102308

UDIN: 21102308AAAADJ3051

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 July 2021



Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

To,

The Board of Directors

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)
Office No. 1,2,3,4, Ground Floor,

Malviya Road, Vile Parle (East)

Mumbai - 400057

independent Auditors’ Additional Repert for the year ended 31 March 2021, pursuant to
the requirements of the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing
Finance Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India

1. This report has been issued in accordance with our terms of engagement letter dated 12
March 2021 with Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and
in accordance with the reauirements of the Master Direction .~ Non-Banking Financial
Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (the ‘Directions’)
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (the ‘RBI’).

L

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Company which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including the summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and have issued an
unqualified opinion vide cur Audit report dated 19 July 2021.

In addition to the said report made under Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)
on the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 and as
required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of india (the ‘RBI'),
we report on the matters specified in paragraph 70 and 71 of the said Directions, to the
extent applicabie, as foilows:

Registered Office

§
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Management’s and Those Charged with Governance’s Responsibility for the financial
statements

5

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
(including other Comprehensive Income), changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for the safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies:
making judgments and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsibie for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management of the Company is also responsible for Compliance with the National
Housing Bank Act, 1987 (‘the NHB Act’) issued by the National Housing Bank (the “NHB”)
and the Directions issued by the RB! and for providing all the required information to the
NHB.

Auditors Responsibility

5.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Directions, it is our responsibility to provide reasonable
assurance on the matters specified in paras 70 and 71 of the Directions, to the extent
applicable to the Company, on the basis of our audit of the financials statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 and examination of books of account and other
records maintained by the Company for the year then ended.

We conducted our examination in respect of this certificate in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accouniants of india.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control {SQC) 1, Quality Controi for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related and Related Services
Engagements, issued by ICAL



Opinion

8. Based on our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 and
examination as above, evidences obtained and the information and explanations, along with
the representations provided by the Management, we report that:

—h

. Para 780.1

The Company has obtained Certificate of Registration No. 02.0071.09 dated 9 February
2009 issued by the New Delhi Regional office of the NHB. Further, the Company has
been allotted the certificate of registration No DOR -00071 dated 12 February 2020 from
Reserve Bank of India in lieu of aforesaid registration issued by NHB;

The Company is meeting the required Net Owned Fund Requirements during the year
ended 31 March 2021 as prescribed under section 29A of the NHRB Act;

The Company has complied with the provisions of section 29C of the NHB Act with
respect to the statutory reserves during the year ended 31 March 2021;

The total borrowings of the Company are within the limits prescribed under paragraph
27 .2 of the Directions as at 31 March 2021;

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been
prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under Section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. In preparation of
the financial statements, the prudential norms relating to the income recognition,
accounting standards, assets classification, disclosure on balance sheet, provisioning
norms which are specified in the Directions; have been compiied in accordance with the
appiicable ind AS. Further, the Company has compiied with prudentiai norms on loan-to-
value ratio, investment in real estate, exposure to capital markets and engagement of
brokers and concentration of credifinvestments as specified in the Directions as may be
applicable for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Capital Adequacy Ratic as at 31 March 2021 as disclosed in the Schedule il retumn
submitted to NHB in terms of the NHB Directions on 12 May 2021 was correctly
determined and this ratio is in compliance with the minimum capital to risk weighted
assets ratio (‘'CRAR’) prescribed therein;

The Company has furnished to the NHB the Schedule-ll return during the year ended 31
March 2021 within the stipulated period as specified in the Directions by NHB;

The Company has furnished quarterly Schedule —Ill Return on Statutory Liquidity Assets
to NHB for the year ended 31 March 2021 within the stipulated period as specified in the
NHB Directions except for the quarter ended 31 March 2021, which was submitted on 16
April 2021 within the extension period granted by the NHB.
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For Suresh Surana & Associates & LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 121750WMW-100010

Rame
Partner

F

ol e

i. In case of opening of new branches/offices or in the case of closure of existing
branches/offices, the Company has complied with the requirements of the Directions for
the year ended 31 March 2021;

j- The Company does not have any exposure in terms of paragraph 3.1.3, 3.1.4 and

paragraph 18 of the Directions for the year ended 31 March 2021;

k. The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 29 May 2017 has
passed a resolution for non acceptance of any public depaosits; and

I. The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year ended 31 March
2021;

2. Para 70.2

Since the Company has Ceriificate of Registration as Housing Finance Company and not
accepting /holding public deposits, the matters referred to in Para 70.2 of the Directions are
not applicable to the Company.

Restrictions on Distribution or Use

Our work was performed solely to assist you for compliance with the Directions. Our
Obligations in respect of this report are entirely separate from, and our responsibilities and
liabilities is in no way changed by any other role we may have as statutory auditors of the
Company or otherwise. Nothing in this report, nor anything said or done in the course of or
in connection with the services that are subject of this report, will extent any duty of care we
may have in our capacity as statutory auditors of the Company.

This certificate is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors of the Company
pursuant to our obligations under the Directions requiring us 40 submit on the additional
maiters as stated in the aloresaid directions, and should not be used, referred to or
distributed for any other purpose or to any other person without our prior written consent.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other
purpese or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may
come without our prior consent in writing.

Haf o

Membership No.: 102306
UDIN: 21102306AAAADJ3051

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 Juily 2621

Suresh Surana & Associates LLP



Svntantr:l Micro Housling Finance Corporation Limitad
(Formerty known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Balance shaet as at 31 March 2021
‘Amaunt In Rs. '000'}

Note no. As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Assets
Financlal assets
Cash and cash aquivelents 3 8,74,050.44 1,03,923.78
Bank balances other than cash end cash equivalenta 4 3,01,844.57 2,09,814.41
Loans 5 80,87,045.14 68,83,227.09
Other financlal aseets e 1821255 532111
Total financlal essets 3 928215270 72,02.28637
Non-financial assets
Currant tax assets (net) 7 3,055.45 3,511.86
Defarred tax assets (net} 8 28,779.53 27,820.85
Investment property 9 250.1 260.71
Property, plant and equipment 10 3,212.18 3,166.25
Other intangible assets 10 43.20 116.77
Right of uea ansat 11 8,770.81 5,505.83
Other non-financlal asssts 12 8,501.18 8,132.39
Total non-financial assets ] 49,613.04 48,513.05
Total asssts 83,31,766.74 72.50,799.42
Liabllities and equity
Liabliitles
Financial liabllitles
Payables

Trads payables

- Totel outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprisas 13 - 82.08

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small anterprises 13 4,227.11 4,021.13

Other payables - -

- Total outstanding duss of micro enterprises and smail enterprises - -

= Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14 8,591.29 2,639.35
Debt securities 156 9,22,208.54 5,26,300.97
Borrowings (other than debt securitias) 18 66,58,134.62 52,02,120.52
Cther financlal liablliias 17 43,811.09 34,251.87
Total financlal labliities 3 76,14 972.85 57,80,315.82
Non-financlal llabliities
Provisions 18 14,524.77 10,073.18
Other non-financial liabilitles 19 7.281.43 4,460.86
Total non-financlal llabliitiss 21,808.20 15,434.04
Total llabliities 76,56, 778.85 57,84,749.96
Equlty
Equity share ¢apital 20 414,775,756 3,02,275.75
Non-gumulative compulsorily convertible prefarance shares 21 - 3,00,000.00
Other equity 2 - 12 80,211.14 8.63,773.71
Total squity 16,74,986.89 14.66,048.48
Total llabllities and aquity - 83.31,765.74 72.50,799.42
Summai+ of Siznificant accounting rolicles = 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statementa
As per our report of even date attached
FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Svatantra Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limted
Firm's ﬁ:—glmﬂon No.: 121750W/AWV-100010

2 Do e
TALR
neet Ch Anll Chiranla
Managing Director Director

Memberzhip ho.: 102308 DIN: 07962531 DIN: 01082719

Place: Mumbal
Data: 18th July, 2021

o : 'L{LLL'%.

B>

Tasneem Mandsorwala 8ahil Mehta
Company Secretary Chyel Sisaag sl Officer
Membership Na: A34813 -
Place: Mumbai

Date: 18th July, 2021




Svatantra Micro Houslng Finance Corporation Limited
{Formaerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

Equity share capltal {Amount In Rs, '000")

o No of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 3,02,27,575.00 3,02,275.75
Issued during the year -
Deletion during current year . - .
Balance at 31 March 2020 3,02,27,575.00 3,02,275.73
Issued during the vear 37,50,000.00 a7.500.00
Converted during the year 75,00,000.00 76,000.00
Deletlon during current year - .
Balance at 31 March 2021 4,14,77,575.00 4,14,775.75
Non-cumulative compulsorily convertlble preference shares (Amount in Rs. '000')

o No of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 - -
lssued during the year 30,00,000.00 3,00,000.00
Deletion durng the year "
Balance at 31 March 2020 30,00,000.00 3,00,000.00
Issued during the year - -
Converted during the year 30.00.000.00 300 000.00
Balance at 31 March 2021 - =
Other equity iAmount in Rs. "000')

Reserves and Surplus
Securites Statuto! Impalrment Total

| premium rosorve;y reserve Retalned earnings

[ Balance as at1 April 2019 4,45,105.51 1,15,375.40 2,586.51 2,78,966.42 8,42,033.84 |
Profit for the year - - - 24,908.32 24,908.32
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (1,573.13) {1,573.13)
Transfer from / to retalned eamings - 5,892.87 15,637.34 (21,430.31) -
Share Issue expenses =i 11583.32)| (1.683.32)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 4,45,105.51 1,21,268.37 18,123.85 2.79,275.98 | 8,63.773.M
Prefit for the year - - - 57,760.35 57,760.35
Addition during the year 3,37,500.00 - - - 3,37,500.00
Other comprehensive Income for the year - - - 1,177.08 | 1,177.08
Transfer from / to retained eamings - 11.552.07 35.978.31 147,530.38)| .
Balance at 31 March 2021 7,82,605.51 1,32,820.44 54.102.18 | 2,90,683.03 | _1260,211.14

Summary of Significant accounting policies - refer nota 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financlal statements
As per our raport of aven date attached

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Reglstration No.: 121750W/AW-100010

Ra u

Partner

Membership No.: 102306
Place: Mumbai

Date: 16th July, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatantre Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Vinest cm.rﬂf:{f

Managing Director
DIN: 07962531

Py <
PP
Tasneam Mandsorwala
Company Secretary
Membership No: A34613
Place: Mumbal
Date: 16th July, 2021

NfCleaa

Director
DIN: 01082719

Sahll Mehta
Chief Financial Officer




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limitad)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amount In Rs, '000"

Year endod Year ended
Note ne. 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenus from operations
Interest Income 23 9,08,064.86 7,37,893.15
Net galn on fair value changes 24 2.384.50 15 502.98
Total revenue from operations 9,11,449.36 7,53,306.13
Other Income 25 11,569.18 8,782.71
Total Income 9,23,018.54 7,80,178.84
Expenses
Finance costs 26 6,16,238.01 5,23,384.34
Impairment on financlal instruments 27 35,718.42 5,671.42
Employee benefits expense 28 1,38,369.97 1,30,347.78
Depreclation and amortleation 29 7,840.49 8,889.13
Other expenses 30 47 623.37 §6.506.52
Total expenses - 8,46.091.16 7,23,779.17
Profit bafore tax 76,027.38 36,309.87
Tax expense:
= Current tax 31 18,140.00 11,340.02
- Defarred tax expense 3 854.20 162.43
- Earller year tax ad|ustments 372.83 .
19,167.03 11,493.35
Profit after tax $7,760.35 24,908.32
Other comprehensive income
(i) ltens that will not be reclassified to profit or loas
- Remesasurements of the defined benefit plans (cost) 1,673.00 (2,102.22)
(Il} Income tax relating to itemns that will not be reclassifled to profit or (395.92) 520.00
loas
Other comprehensive Income, net of Income tax ' 1,177.08 11,673.13)
Total comprehensive Income 58,937.43 23,333.19
Earnings per share (Nominal Value - Rs. 10) 32
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 1.46 0.78
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 1.48 0.78
Summary of Significant accounting policies 2
The accompany:ng notes form an inlecral part of financlal statements .
As per our report of even date attached
FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Svatantra Micro Houslng Finance Corporation Limited

Firm's Registration No.: 121760W/W-100010

anuh[Gup a

NClena

Vineet Chattree Anil Chirania
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 102306 DIN: 07962531 DIN: 01082719
Place: Mumbal

Date: 18th July, 2021
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Tasneem Mandsorwala Sahll Mehta
Company Secretary Chlef Financial Officer
Membership No: A34813

Place: Mumbal

Date: 19th July, 2021




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housling Finance Corporation Limited)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
|Amount In Rs. '000")

Year endad Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit before tax 78,927.38 36,399.67
Cash flow from operating activities
AdJugted for:
Flnance costs on leass liabilitles 713.31 841.12
Transaction costs on borrowings (17,094.67) {1,914.03)
Gain on sale of mutual fund units held as current investments (2.384.50) (15,602.88)
Deprsciation and amortisation 7,840.49 8,869.13
Gain on tarmination of lease {84.61) -
Interest on fixed deposits and Inter corporate deposits {28,225.82) {15,170.61}
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment . 522
Share Issue expenses 1,520.00 -
Transaction costs on Loans 17,118.31 14,886.60
Impaimant on financlal Instruments 36,718.42 5,871.42
Unwinding interest income o 1199.165) 1198.59)
Operating profit before working capital changes 91,869.18 33,8086.85
Changes In working capital
- (Increasa)} / decrease In loans {12,56,654.78) {12,14,711.01)
- (Increase) / decragase in other financlal assets {13,692.28) (1,817.00)
- {Increase) / decreasa In other non financial assets 1,631.23 (8,642.72)
- Increasa / {decrease) In trade payables 4,176.84 4,669.52
- Increasa / {decreass) in other financlal llabllitles 6,200.35 (28,218.36)
- Increase / {(decreass) in other non financlal liabiliies 2,820.57 901.59
- Increase / (decrease) In provislons 4,728.67 3,263.69
Cash generated from operating actlvities {11,66,921.25) (12,10,775.44)
Income 1ax pald {net) _[17,660.71) 18,289.03)
Net cash used In operating activitics (11,77.891.96) {12,20,064.47)
Cash flows from Investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and squipment and Intanglbles {2,291.03) {1,822.39)
Proceads from sale of property, plant and equipment and Intanglbles 2.04 15.08
Purchase of mutual funds {38,41,900.00) (3,38,56,300.00)
Proceeds of sale of mutual funds 38,44,284.50 3,38,71,802.98
Interest recelved on bank deposits and Inter corporate deposlis 13,185.66 3,279.67
Maturity /(investments} of /in fixed deposits |77,000.00; {1,87.5600.00
Net cash generated from / (used In) Investing activities (83,708.83) (1,70,824.75)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Procaeds from Issuance of Compulsorily convertible preference shares - 3,00,000.00
Proceads from issuance of equity shares 1,50,000.00 -
Share |ssue expenses {1,620.00) {1,996.00)
Proceeds from issue of debentures 4,00,000.00 -
Proceads from long tarm borrowings 29,36,000.00 23,50,000.01
Rspayment of long term borrowings {13,67,683.66) {12,95,022.38)
Procesds from short borrowings 2,25,000.00 £09,400.00
Repayment of short tarm bormowings {3,24,400.00) -
Repayment of lease liabilities (5,365.56) (5,398.78)
Interest paid on lease liabliities 17331 1841.12)
Net cash generated from financing activities 20,11, 417.47 14,48,142.77
Net increase |n cash and cash aquivalents 7,70,126.68 56,663.54
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 1.03.823.78 48 370,22
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents ) 8,74,060.44 1,03,923.76
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 284.45 196.36
Balances with banks
- With banks in current accounts 873 765.89 1.03728.40
Cash and cash squivalents ; 8,74,050.44 1,03,923.76
—




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formarly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Staternent of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
Cash Flow Statement (Contd..)

Changes In llabllities arising from financing activities

As at
31 March 2021

Opeaning balance (Borrowings + debt securities)

Proceeds from long-term borowings (including debentures)
Rapayment /{ additlon ) in lease fiablliies (net)

Proceeds from Short-term bormrowings

Finance costs on lease liabilities

Repayments of long-term borrowings

Rapayments of Short-term borrowings

Transaction coste on borrowings

Cloalng balance (Borrowings+ debt securities)

Summary of Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an Intsgral oart of these financlal statements

67,34,081.17
33,36,000.00
5,072.18
2,25,000.00
(713.31)
(13,67,583.86)
(3,24,400.00)
(17.094.67;
75,80,241.71

As ot
31 March 2020
45,91,088.94
23,50,000.01
(3,493.00)
99,400.00
(841.12)
(12,95,022.36)

(7.071.30)

57,34,081.17

As per our reporl of even date attached

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Istration No.: 121750WMAN-100010

Membarship No.: 102306
Place: Mumbai
Date: 18th July, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatantra Py,:_[c Heusing Flnance Corporation Limited

Managing Director
DIN: 07962531
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Tunoemﬁlsonnla
Company Secretary
Membarship No: A34613
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Date: 18th July, 2021
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Anil Chiranla
Director
DIN: 01082719
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Chlef Financlal Officer




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housling Finance Corporation Limited)

Notas to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Corporate Information

Svatantra Micro Houslng Finance Corporation Limited (“SMHFC” or "the Company”™) was incorporated on 16 May 2008 with the objective to provide
housing finance for financlally excluded familles, particularly lower Income Informal sector households. The Company was registered with National
Housing Bank ("NHB") as housing finance company. However, vide certifcate of regstration dated 12 Februry 2020, the Company elso reglstered
with the Reserve Bank of Indla ("RBI") as a housing finance company. The Company Is domiclled In Indla and lis registered office Is sltuated at
Office no. 1,2,3,4, Ground Floor, Pushpak Co-operative Housing Soclety Ltd., Malaviyva Road, Vile Parle (East), Mumbal - 400 057, Maharashtra,
Indla. The Company Is wholly owned subsldiary of Svatantra Holdings Private Limited

1 Basls of preparation of financial statements

These financlal statements ("the Financial Statements”) have been prepared In accordance with the Indlan Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') as
nofifiled by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) under Section 133 of the Companles Act, 2013 {'Act’) read with the Companles (Indlan Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provisions of the Act. Any application guldance/clarifications/ directions
issuad by Regerve bank of India and National Housing Bank or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/ applicable. The
Company has uniformly applied the accounting policles for all the periods presented In this financial statements.

The financlal statements have been prapared on a historical cost conventlon and accrual basls, except for the following assets and liablliies and on
the basls of accounting principles of a golng concem In accordance with generally accepted accounting principle (GAAP):

1) Certaln financlal assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

11} Defined benefit plans, and related -plan assets measured at falr value using actuarial valuation

The financlal statements have been presentad In accordance with Schedule [lI-Division lll General Instructions for Preparation of financial
statements of a Non-Banking Financial Company {(NBFC) that Is required to comply with Ind AS.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 July 2021.

2  Significant accounting policles

a. Functional and presentation currency

These financlal statements are presented in Indlan Rupees ('INR' or 'Rs.") which Is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts are
rounded-off to the nearest thousands, unless otherwlse Indicated.

b. Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be recelved to sell an assst or pald to tranafer a liabllity in an orderly transaction betwesn market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement Is based on the prasumption that the transaction to eell the asset or transfer the llabllity takes
place elthar:

In the princlpal market for the asset or llabllity, or

In the absence of a princlpal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liabllity

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by thea Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or llabllity,
assuming that market pariicipants act in thelr economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economlic benefits by using the asset
In Its highest and best use or by selling it o another market participant that would use the assst in Its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficlent data are avallable to measure falr valus,
meximising the use of relevant observable Inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value I1s measured or disclosed in the financial etatements are categorised within the fair value hlerarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that Is significant to the falr value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets for identical assets or llabillties

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest leval Input that Is significant to the fair value measurement Is directly or Indirectly observable.
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that Is significant to the fair value measurement Is unobsarvable.

For assets and llabilitles that are recognized In the financlal statements on a recurring basls, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels In the hlerarchy by re-asseasing categorization {(based on the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value
maasurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting perlod.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring falr value measuremant, such as dervative Instruments
and unguoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurament, such as assets held for distribution In discontinued
operations.

At sach reporting date, the Management analyses the movements In the values of assets and llabllities which are required to be remeasured or re-
assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analyals, the Management verlifies the major inputs applied In the latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computatlon to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change In the fair value of each asset and liabllity with relevant external sources to determine whether the
change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disciosures, the Company has determined classes cf assets and llabllides on the basls of the nai ﬁhar%g{
o

and risks of the asset or llabilty and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained alio}n:;:——\_""} : g Q\\ — %
So
c. Revenue recognition RN “/ ( %
Revenue Is recognised to the extent that It is probable that the economic benefii wil fiow torthe ’[Mku1ny and the 'a! %
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year snded 31 March 2021

Interest Income

Interest Income (s recorded using the effective Intarest rate (EIR) method for all financlal Instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR ls the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts through the expected Iife of the financlal Instruments or, when appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount of the financlal asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amoriised cost of the asset) Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs
that are an Integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises Interest Income using a rate of retumn that represents the best estimate of a constant
rate of return cver the expected life of the loan.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financlal asset are revised for reasons other than credit fsk. The adjustment Is booked as a positive
or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset In the balance sheet with an Increase or reduction In Interest income. The adjustment la
subsaquently amortised through interest Incoms In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Net gain on Falir value changes:

Any differences between the falr values of financlal assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss held by Company on the balance sheet
date is recognised as an unrealised gsln / loss. In ceses there Is a net galn in the aggregate, the same Is recognised In "Net gains on fair value
changes” under revenue from operations and if there Is a net loss the same |s disclosed under "Expenses” In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financlal Instruments measured at FVTL and debt instruments measured at Fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income ("FVOCI”) Is recognised In net galnlloss on fair value changes.

However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financlal Instruments classlifled as amortised Is presented separately under the respective head In the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fees and commission
Servica fees and facllitation charges are recognised on satisfactorly completion of service dellvery.

d. Financlal Instruments
Financlal instrument Is any contract that glves rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financlal llability or equity instrument of another entity.

Inital recognition and measurement

Financlal assets and financial llabillties are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument
and are measured Initlally at falr value adjusted for transaction costs. Subsequent measurement of financlal assets and financlal llablitles Is
deecribed below.

Non-derivative financial assets
Subsequent measurement

I. Financlal assets carrled at amortised cost
Flnanclal asset |s measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

The assst Is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and Contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest (SPPI) on the princlpal amount outstanding.

After Initlal measurement, such financlal assats are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation Is Included In intarest Income In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

. Investments In equity Instruments

Investments In equity Instruments which are held for trading are classified at feir value through profit or loss (FVTPL). For all other equity
instruments, the Company makes an lrrevocable cholce upon nitial recognition, on an instrument by Instrument basis, to classify the same elther at
fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Amounts prasented In other comprehensive
Income are not subsequently transfamrsd to Statment of Profit and Loss. However, the Company transfers the cumulative gain or loss within equlty.
Dividends on such investments are recognised In Statement of Profit and Loas unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment.

ill. Investments In mutual funds
Investments in mutual funds are measured at falr value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial assets

Financlal assets {or where applicable, a part of financlal asset or part of a group of simllar financial assets) are derecognised (l.e. removed from the
Company's balance sheet) when the contractual rights to recelve the cash flows from the financlal asset have expired, or when the financlal asset
and substantially all the rigks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not retained controf, it shall also de-reoognlse lhe financlal
asset and recognise separately as assets or llablliies any righta and obllgaﬂons created or retained in the transfer.




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Non-derivative financial llabllities
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initlal recognition, all non-derivative financlal liabliliias are measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method.

De-recognition of financlal llabllities

A financlal llabliity is de-recognised when the obligation under the llabillty is discharged or cancelled or explred. When an exlsting financlal llability Is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantlally different terms, or the terms of an existing llabllity are substantiaily modifled, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the deracognition of the original liabillty and the recognition of a new llabllity. The difference in the respactive
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financlal Instruments

Flnancial assets and financlal llablitties are offset and the net amount Is reported In the balance sheet if there Is a currently enforceable legal right to
offest the recognised amounts and there is an intention to sattle on a net basls, to realise the assets and settle the llabllities simultansously.

@. Forelgn currency

Transactions In foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevalling on the date of transaction. Forelgn currency denominated monetary
assets and liabllitles are transtated at the exchange rate prevalling on the balance sheet date and exchange gain or loss arising on settiement and
restatement are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

f. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and Initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost If capitallsation criterla are
met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the Intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted In
arrving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included In the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when It is probable that future
economic benefits assoclated with the Item will flow to the Company and the cost of the ltem can be measured rellably. All other repair and
malintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loas.

Depreclation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreclation and impalrment losses. Depraciation on property,
plant and equipment Is provided on the written down method over the useful life of the assets. as prascribed under Part 'C' of Schedule || of the
Companles Act, 2013.

Asset Class Useful life
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Fumiture and fixture 10 years

Depreciation Is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or il the date the asset ls sold or disposed. The
residual values, useful lives and mathod of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financlal year. PPE costing up to Rs. 5,000 Individually are
depreclated fully In the year in which they are purchased.

De-recognition

An ltem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part Initially recognised Is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from Its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arging on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
dlsposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset) Is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss, when the asset is de-recognised.

Capital work-In-progress

Capltal work-In-progress are carrlad at cost, comprising direct cost and related Incldental expenses acquire proparty, plant and equipment. Assets
which are not ready fo Intended use are also shown under capital work-In-progreas.

Intanglble assets

Recognition and Initial measurement

Intanglble assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price Including any Import dutles and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from taxation authoritles), borrowing cost if capitallsation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condltion for the intended use.

Computer software - 3 years

Amortisation

Intanglble assets are amortised cver a thelr estimated useful lives. The estimated useful {ife (amortisation period) of the intangible assets is arrived
basls the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits and Is reviewed at the end of each financial yeer and the amortisation period Is
ravised to reflect the changed pattemn, If any. The estimated useful lives of Intanglble assets are as follows:

Computer Software - 3 years

¢ Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expensas and net change in the deferred tax assets or llabllites during the year. C.

taxes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when thay teigie to Item that are recognised In other com
directly In equity, in which case, the cument and deferred tax are also 1z quae{ 'N:hr r comprehenslve income or directly qﬁl}-!:..




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limlited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance GCorporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Current taxes

Provision for current tax Is recognlzed based on the estimated tax llablllty computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions In
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Advance taxes and provision for current income tax are presented In the balance sheet after offsetting
the advance tax pald and Income tax provision arising In the same jurisdicion and whera the relevant tax paylng units Intends to settle the asaet
and llabllity on a net basls.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax Is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and llabilitles for financlal reporting purposes and
corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax loss, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent it is probable that the future texable profits wlli be avellable againet which they can be used. This is assessad
based on the Company's forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable Income and expenses and speclfic limlts on the
use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised defermed tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the defarmed tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and llabililes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liabllity is
settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner In which the Company expects, at the reporting date to recover or settle the
carrylng amount of Its assets and liablliles. Deferred tax assets and llabllities are offset only If there Is a legally enforceable right to set off the
racognised amounts, and I is Intended to reallse the asset and settle the Hability cn a net basis or simuitaneously. Defemed tax relating to items
recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside Statement of Profit and Loss {efther in other comprehensive Income or in
equity).

h. Employee Benefits

Short-term employes benefits:

Short tarm employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expansed as a related service provided. A llabillty Is
recognised for the amount expected to be pald under short term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliabty.
Contribution to provident fund and other funds :

In accordance with Indian Law, eliglble employees receive benefits from Provident Fund , Employse State Insurance Contribution (ESIC) and
Labour welfare fund which Is defined contribution pian. In case of Provident fund, both the employee and employer make monthly contributions to
the plan, which is administrated by the Government authorities, each equal to the specific percentage of employee's basic salary. The Company
has no further obligation under the plan beyond its monthly coniributions. Obligation for contributions to the plan is recognised as an employse
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when Incurred.

Gratulty:

Gratulty Is a post employment benefit and Is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The llability recogniged In the balance sheet In respect of
gratulty Is the present value of the defined beneflt / obligation at the balance sheet date less the falr value of plan assets, together with adjustments
for unrecognised actuarial galns or losses and past service cosis. The defined benefits / obligations are calculated at the balance sheet date by an
Independent actuary using the projected unlt credit method.

Actuarial galne and losses arlsing on the measurement of defined bensfit obligation ls charged/ credited to other comprehensive Income

Compensated Absences:

The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The liabllities towards compensated absences to
employees are accrued on the basls of valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, camed out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit
Method. Actuaral gains and lossas comprise experlence adjustments and the effects of changes In actuarial assumptions and are recognised
ImmedIately In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

I. BorrowlIng costs:
Bormrowing cost of financlal llabillies 1s recognised using the Effective Intrest Rate (EIR) method

J- Impairment of non-financlal assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any Indication that an asset may be impeaired. If any such Indication exlsts, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Recoverable amount Is higher of an asset's net selling price and its value In use. If auch
recoverable amount of the asset or tha recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assst belongs Is less than lts camrying amount,
the carrying amount Is reduced to lts recoverable amount. The reduction Is treated as an Impalrment loas and Is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. If at the reporting date, there Is an indication that if a previously assessed impalrment loas no longer exists, the recoverable amount
Is reassessed and the asaet |s reflected at the recoverable amount.

k. Impairment of financial assets
Loan assets

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Company applles expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and racognition of Impairmant loss on the
financlal assets that are dabt Instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.

For recognition of Impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has bean a significant
increase in the credit risk since initlal recognition. 1f credit rigk has net increased significantly, 12-month ECL Is calculated to previde for Impalrment
loss. However, If credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL Is used. Tf, ln,,.-.;meequent period, credit quality of the inzg
such that there is no longer a significant Increase In credit risk since inltk: EE-iryll@Ltr e Company reverts to recognu
allowance based on 12-month ECL. € f,.-—m\ A\

\
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Svatantra Micro Housling Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

The measurement of ECL is cslculated using three main components: (i) probablilty of default {PD) (ii} loss given default (LGD) and {li) the
exposure at default (EAD). The 12 month ECL Is calculated by multiplying the 12 menth PD, LGD and the EAD. The 12 month and lifetime PDs
represent the PD occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the Instrument respectively. The EAD represents the expectad
balance at default, taking Into account the repayment of principal and Interest from the balance sheet date to the default event together with any
expected drawdowns of committed facillties. The LGD represents expacted losses on the EAD glven the event of default, taking into account,
among other atiributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time It is expected to be reallsed and the time value of money.

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measure ECL on financial assets accounted for at amortised cost and FVTOCI. Assats migrate
through the following three stages based on the change in credit quality since inltial recognition.

1y Stage 1: 12-months ECL - For exposures where there has not been a significant Increase In credit risk since initial recognition and that are not
credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the Iifetime ECL assoclated with the probability of default events occutring within the next 12 months
Is recognised. Exposures with days past due (DPD) less than or equal to 29 days are classified as stage 1. The Company has identified zero bucket
and bucket with DPD less than or equal to 29 days as two separate buckets.

il) Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired - For credit exposures where there has been a significant Increase In credit risk since initlal
recognition but that are not credit Impalred, a lifetime ECL Is recognlsed. Exposures with DPD equal to 30 days but less than or equal to 89 days
are classifled as stage 2. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase In credit sk for financlal
asset since Inltial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected Iife between the reporting date and the date of Initial
recognition. The Company has ldentified cases with DPD equal to or more than 30 days and less than or equal to 59 days and cases with DPD
equal to or more than 80 days and less than or equal to 89 days as two separate buckets.

Iy Stage 3: Lifetima ECL — cradit impaired - Financlal asset is assessed as credit impalred when one or more events that have a detrimental Impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For financlal asset that have become credit impalred, a llfeime ECL Is recognised
on principal outstanding as at period end. Exposures with DPD equal to or more than 90 days are classified as stage 3.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securitles at
FVOCI, the loss allowancs Is racognised In OCI and carrying amount of the financial asset is not reduced in the balance sheet.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impalred {POCI) financial assets, i.e., financlal assets which are credit Impaired on
purchase/ origination.

It has been the Company's pollcy to regularly review Its models in the context of actual loss experfence and adjust when necessary. Refer note
38(C) for detalled nots.
Trade recelvables

In respect of trade recelvables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 108, which requires measurement of loss allowance at an
ameunt equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected cradit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of trade recelvables.

Write-offs

Financlal assets are written off either partlally or In their entirety to the extent that there Is no reallstic prospect of recovery. Any subsaquent
recoveries are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand (including imprest), demand deposits and short-term highly liquid Investments that are readlly
convertlble Into known amount of cash and which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value. The Company has netted off the balance
of bank overdraft with cash and cash equivalents for Statament of Cash Flows.

m. Provisions, Contingent llabliities and Contingent assets:

Provislons are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of
obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the ime value of money Is material.

Contingent liabllity s disclosed for:

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not whoally within the control of the Company or

Present obligations arising from past events whers It is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a rellable
estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed axcept when realisation of income Is virtually certain, related asset Is disclosed.

n. Reilmbursement of processing fee and other charges

As per the guldelines of new government schemes under Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY), no processing fee is allowed to be charged to the
aligible customers. However, the Company Is entiled to get a reimbursement from the customers for the expenses incurred In connection with
origination of the loans. Such reimbursement receivable forms part of “Non-housing loans”, Included under Loans and advances in the Balance
Sheet.

The expenses presented In the Statement of Profit and Lose such as Salaries and wages, Insurance, Franking charges, ef. are stated net of such
racoverles from customers.

o. Earnings per share ;::r—;x_\\

— ?"' Q:\.
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Svatanira Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

p. Loases
As n lessee

The Company applies a eIngle recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shori-tarm leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Company recognises lease llabiliies to make lease payments and rght-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

l. Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use asgets at the commencement date of the lease (l.e., the date the underlying asset is avallable for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lsase
liabllites. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease ilabllites recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives recelved. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-ine basls over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impalrment. Refar note 2 {]} of accounting pollcy for impalrment of non-financial assets.

Il. Lease liabllities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognisas leasae llabllitles measured at the present value of lease payments to ba made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (Including In-substance fixed payments) less any lease Incantives recelvable,
variable lease payments that depend on an Index or a rate, and amounts axpected to be pald under resldual value guarantees. The lease paymenta
also Include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penaltles for terminating
the lease, If the leass term reflects the Company exerclsing the option {o tarminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are Incurred to produce inventories) In the period in which the event or condltion that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit In the leass Is not readlly determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease llablliies is increased to reflect
the accretlon of Interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrylng amount of lease ligbilities is remeasured If there Is a
modification, a change In the lease tarm, a change In the lease payments (8.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an Index or
rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change In the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company's lease liabilitles are Included in other financlal liabllitles

Ill. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assots

The Company applles the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (l.e., those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assats
recognition exemption to leases of laptops, lease-lines and office furniture and equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leages of low-value aseets are recognised as expense on a sfralght-line basis over the lease term

As a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the riske and rewerds incidental to cwnership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basls over the lease terms. Initial direct costs Incurred In negotiating and
amranging an operating lease are added to the carrylng amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
Income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue In the perlod In which they are samed.

4. Recent accounting pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Minlistry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notlfication, amended Scheduls Ill of the Companles Act, 2013. The
amendments revise Division |, Il and Il of Schedule Iif and are applicable from April 1, 2021, Key amendmants relating to Division Il which relate ta
companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companles (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes In equity such as changes In equity share capital due to prior pariod errors and restated
balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

Specified format for disclosure of shareholkding of promoters.

Speclified format for ageing schedule of trade recelvables, trade payables, capital work-In-progress and Intangible asset under development.
If a company has not used funds for the speclfic purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financlal Institutions, then disclosure of details
of where it has been used.

Spacific disclosure under ‘additfonal regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemas of arrangements, compllance with number
of layers of companles, title deeds of Immovable property not held In name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key
managerial personnet (KMP) and related parties, detalls of benaml property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

Addltional disclosures relating to undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the heaed ‘additional [nformation’ in the notes
forming part of the financlal statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to g 15 required by law.
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formarly known as Micro Housing Finance Gorporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal stataments for the year ended 31 March 2021

Cash and cash equivalents

" Cash on hand
Balances with banks - in currant accounts*

* Includes amounts received towards NHB subsidy panding transfer to customers

Bank balances other than cash and cash squivalents

Deposils with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months*

*Bank deposit held as securities

against borrowings

against bank guaranise

debt service and reserve account maintained with State Bank of Indla.

Loans

At amortieed cost

{1} Term loans

{a) Houslng loans

{b) Nen Houslng loans

{c) Loan to employees

Total {I) - Gross loans

Less: Impairment loss allowancs
Total (i) - Net

{Il) 8scuredfunsecured

{a) Sacured by tangible asseats
(b} Unsecured

Total (ll) - Gross

Leas: impalrment loss allowance
Total (1) - Net

(i) Loans In Indla

(&) Public sector

{b) Others

Total (lil) - Gross

Less: Impalrment loss allowance
Total {Ill) - Net

(Iv) Loans cutside India

(a) Loan outside India
Total {Iv)

Cther financlal assats

At amortised cost

Security deposits

Staff advances

Cthers raceivables

Ex-gratla claims receivable ( Refar note 75)

Current tax asseia (net)

Advance tax*

Amount In Rs. ‘000"
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
284.45 195.36
873 785.99 103.728.40
8,74,050.44 1.03,023.7¢
93.60 241.63
1 Amount in Rs. ‘000"
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
_ 301844.57 208 814.41
3,01,844.67 2,00,814.41
16,445.45 .
2,54,380.88 2,09,814.41
32,018.26
3,01.844.57 2,09.814.41
Amount In Rs. 000'|
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
78,27,728.49 67,00,743.64
3,19,998.63 2,15,250.48
— 1,086.28 936.08
81,49,813.40 £9,16,930.19
___(61,768.26) (33,712.10,
80,87,045.14 68,83,227.09
81,47,727.12 69,16,003.10
1,086.28 938.00
B1,48,813.40 09,16,939.19
161,768.26! 133,712,101
80,87,045.14 68,83,227.09
81,48,813.40 69,16 939.19
81,48,813.40 £0,16,930.19
161,768.26 (33,712.10,
80,87,048.14 68,83,227.09
{Amount in Rs. ‘000"
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
3,928.59 3,795.34
724.35 445.77
5,682.13 1,080.00
8 877.48 -
19,212.58 5321.11

{Amount In Rs. '000";
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the flnanclal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabllities (net)

{Amount In Rs. '000")

As at As at
— _— 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
“Diefarrad Tax asseis
Provislon for iImpairment of assets 15,546.84 8,484.66
Provislon for employes benefits 3,666.69 2,761.73
Timing difference on PPE depreciation/amoriisation 1,311.46 1,146.66
Uneamed processing fae 6568.39 -
Share Issue expenses 807.30 401.68
Transactlon cost on loans 15,481.09 19,800.72
Leass llabilities 57.32 162.34
Total dalerred Tax asseis 37.Mé08 32757.70
Deferred Tax llabliities
Amortisation of borrowing costs {19,073.58) {4,928.14)
Modification | restructuring ! nain on financial assets (463.88! -
Tatal deferred Tax |iabiiies {10, 837465} W
_Nat deferred Tax asseis/|{[abilifes] 28 B
Other non-financlal assets
1Amount In Rs. ‘000
As gt As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Prapald expenses 6,819.37 7.983.41
Balance with government authorities 572.18 -
Cther assets 109.63 148.98
6.501.18 8,132.39
Trade payables
[Amount in Rs. '000'|
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises { Refer note 42) - 82.08
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,227.11 4,021.13
4,227.11 4,103.21
Qther payables
Amount In Rs. 000"
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 42) - -
Total outstanding dues of creditore other than micro enterprises and smalt entarprises 6,591.29 2,539.35
6,501.20 2,538.38
Dabt securities
{Amount In Rs. '000"
As at As at
I 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Secured
At amortised cost
Redeemable non-convertible debentures 922 208.54 5.26 300.97
9,22,208.54 8,26.300.97
Debt securities in India 9,22,208.54 5,26,300.97
Debt securlties outside India - -
9,22,208.54 §,26.300.87
- - {Amount In Ras. "0(
Terms of debenturas As at As at
— 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
0.45% secured ,rated, unlisted, 265,000 redesmable non convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000 at par on 18 November 2,65,000.00 | 2,65,000.00
2024 |
10.60% sacured ,rated, unlisted, 266,000 redeemabls non converlible debentures of Rs. 1,000 at par on 18 Novomberi 2,66,000.00 | 2,66,000.00
2024
9.65%, secured, rated, unlisted, senlor, fully pald up, taxable, 400 redesmable non-converilble debentures of 4,00,000.00
le_.LUDD.OOD at par on 21 April 2023
Total Debt sscurities 9,31,000.00
| Adjustments of unamortised oiccesuing fee based on EIR i8,791.46,
| Total adjusted Debt securities 9,22 208.54 ‘r

The above non-convertibla debentures {"NCD") were issued on private place B
over the stanciard book debis / loan recalvables of the Company. The payment o

#y of & first ranking exclus:
incipal payable at maturity.
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Svatantra Micro Housling Finance Corporation Limited
{(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Borrowlings (other than debt securities)

At smortised cost
Securad
Tarm loans
- from banks
- from Natlonal Housing Bank (NHB})
- from Financial Institution (FI)
Loans Repayable on Demand
- from a Bank

Total

Bormrowings in India
Borrowings outside India

Notes:

| Amount in Re. '000"

As at Ap at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

47,23,066.06 31,77,758.86
16,41,279.89 13,78,603.00
3,83,768.68 5,48,458.67

- 90 400.00
66,58.134.62 52.02,120.52
66,58,134.62 52,02,120.52
86,58,134.62 52.0Z,120.52

{1} Term loans are secured by fIret excluslve charge through hypothecation of book debts/ recsivables (housing loans) of the Company both present and future

and assignment of mortgage on the dwelling units financed from such term loans.

{ii) The Company has not defaulted In the repayment of debt securities and borrowings (other than debt securities) and Interest thereon for the year ended 31

March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

(lii) The repayment of the borrowing is done in monthly, quarterly, half - yearly and annual Installment as per the sanctioned tarms.

Provision for empioyee benefits - Leave encashment.

{Amount In Re. '000"
Rate of Intereat Category Maturity As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
7%-0% Banks Within 1 year 4,91,663.08 21,428.57
8%-10% Banks 3,64,327.85 71,142,868
10%-11% Banks 3,20,400.00 3,90,925.90
11%-12% Banks - 79,900.60
10%-11% Fl 1,42,805.32 -
11%-12% Fl - 1,62,863.70
| 3%-10% NHB [ 4,02,340.46 1,81,974.00
8%-0% Banks Within 1-5 years 9,43,520.76 64,285.71
0%-10% Banks 13,62,040.16 2,51,761.90
10%-11% Banks 8,54,315.07 16,47,614.13
11%-12% Banks - 2,63,333.93
10%-11% Fl 2,51,870.50 -
11%-12% Fl - 3,85,460.83
3%-10% NHB 9,00,680.79| 8,99,703.00
8%-0% Banks More than 5 20,029.39 -
9%-10% Banks years 3,04,198.49 85,714.28
10%-11% Banks 1,02,800.00 3,28,017.35
11%-12% Banks - -
3%-10% - NHB 2,38,358.86 2,96,828.00
Total borrowings (excluding loans repayable on demand) 86,88,360.81 51,20,952.16
Adjustments of unamortised processing fees based on EIR 131,233.88! 118,231.85i
Total adjusted borrowinas [excluding loans rep:yable on demand) . 64, 58.134.62 §1.02,720.50
Other financial llabllities
{Amount In Rs. '000")
As at As at
. — 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 33,718.94 27,608.97
Subsldy recelved from NHB pending transfer to customer * 93.80 241.63
Lease liabilities 9,998.66 6,639.68
Empiloyes benefits payable - 781.59
_ 43811.09 34,251.87
* Pertaln to credi iinked subsidy and interest subvention schems subsldy recelved from NHB, pending credit In respective applicant account.
Provislons
_— Amount In Rs. 000"
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Unfunded
Provision for empleyea benefits - Gratulty (also refer note 38) 12,888.74

B2 18
163601/// Tl
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Svatantra Micro Housling Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited}

Notes to the financial statementa for the year ended 31 March 2021

Other non-financlal llabllities

{Amaunt in Ry 00T

II. 8hareholders holding more than 5% of the shares In the Company

Equity shares

As at As at
- 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Stetutory duss 2,791.32 3,083.64
Advances from customers 4 480.11 1377.32
7,201.43 4,480.88
Share capltal
Detalls of authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capltal | Amount In Rs. '000°|
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Authorised share capitai o
Equity shares of Rs 10 each 6,40,00,000.00 §5,40,000.00 36,00,000.00 3,50,000.00
Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100 each 3.10.00.000.00 310.000.00 30,00 000.00 300 000.00
8.50.000.00 8,50,000.00
Issued,Subscribed and pald up
Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully pald up 4.14,77,675 41477576  3,02,27,6756.00 3,02,275.75
5% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertlble Preference shares of Re. 100 each, - - 30,00,000.00 3,00,000.00
fully pald up
4,14.77.675 4,14,775.75  3,32,27,575.00 6,02,275.78
I. The reconcillation of the number of shares cutstanding and the amount of
Equity Shares
- “(Amount In Rs. ‘000",
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Sharee outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,02,27,575.00 3,02,275.75 3,02,27,575.00 3,02,275.76
Issued during the year 37,50,000.00 37,500.00 - -
Converted during the year 75 00.000.00 75.000.00 - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 4,14,77,575.00 4,14,775.75  3,02,27,578.00 3.0:,278.78
Non-Cumulative Gompulsortly Convertible Preference shares B ‘|Amount in Rs. '000"
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 30,00,000.00 3,00,000.00 - -
lssuad durng the year - - 30,00,000.00 3,00,000.00
Converted to equity during the year 30.00.000.00 300 000.00 - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year - - 30,00,000.00 3,00,000.00

As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares % of helding

Svatantra Hoklings Private Limited

Non-Cumulative Compulsorlly Convertible Preference shares
Svatantra Holdings Private Limited

Iil. Right, preferences and restrictions attached to squity shares

4,14,77,568.00 100.0%

As at 31 March 2021
No. of sharss % of holding

As at 31 March 2020
No. of sharea % of holding

3,02,27,669.00 100%

As at 31 March 2020
No. of shares % of holding

30,00,000.00 100%

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vole per share. All
sheares rank parl passu on repayment of capital In the event of liqukiation. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of the equity shares will be
entitied to recelve any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts. However, no such preferentlal amounts exists
currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharsholders, The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian
rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Diractors is subject to the approval of shareholders In the ensuing General Meeting.

Iv. Right, preferences and restrictions attached to Non-Cumulative Compulserily Convertible Preference shares

In the financlal year 2018-20, the Company had Issued of 3,000,000 5% Non-Cumulative Compulserlly Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 sach (CCPS")
for cash at par aggregating to Rs.300,000 thousands In three tranches as deiziled below. The CCPS shall camry a fixed rate of dividend of 5% (Five Percent) on
the capltal paid up thereon calculated on a proportionate basis from the date of alloimant. The CCPS shall be compulsorily convertible into such number of Equity

8hares on expiry of 10 years from date of aliotment (Refer below) at price valued by a Criag =
point of time and shall be non-cumulative. The CCPS shall rank parl passu In all re=
Assoclation of the Company and that the CCPS shall qualify for dividend, If any, declar:

date of allotment.

fehfEant o
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the ysar ended 31 March 2021
{Amount in Rs. '0007)

"Allotment detalls | Allotment date | No.ofsharss | Amount
4,000,000 CCPS of Rs. 100 each (Tranche I} 16-Oct-19 10,00,000 | 1,00,000.00
1,000,000 CCPS of Rs. 100 sach (Trachs Il) 13-Feb-20 10,00,000 1,00,000.00
1,000,000 CCPS of Rs. 100 each (7 ranche Il 27-Mar-20 1000.000 1,00,000.00

Pursuant to the Consant (etter dated 31 March 2020, the aforesalid conversion term are revised as follows:

CCPS shail be compulgorlly convertible inte equity shares of the Company after expiry of six months but on or bafore the expiry of ten years from the date of
alletment (Refer note above) of CCPS In the ratio of 2:5 i.e. 2 CCPS of Rs. 100 each fully pald-up shall be convertible into § equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully
paid up {face value per Equity share of Rs. 10 Plus premium of Re. 30 per share), If the CCPS are not converted within 10 years from the allotment, then the
CCPS shall be automatically converied Into aquity shares.

On 30 January 2021, CCPS has baen converiad Into equity share capital in the agreed ration of 2:5 .e 3,000,000 6% CCPS are convertad into 7,500,000 equity
shares.
v. Shares Issued for consideration other than cash

The Company has not issued / allotted any shares pursuant to contracts without payment belng received in cash, nor Issued any bonus shares nor there has
been any buy back of shares during flve years immediately preceding 31 March 2021.

21 Other squity tAmount In Rs. '000")
Notes As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Securities premtum 22.2 7,82,805.61 4,45,105.51
Statutory reserve under section 28C of the NHB Act, 1987 22.3 1,32,820.44 1,21,268.37
Impalrment reserves 22.4 54,102.16 18,123.85
Retalned samings 225 290,683.03 2.79.275.98
12,60,211.14 8,83,773.M

(Amount in Rs. '000'
2p4 Particulars As at Asat
) 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Securities premium

Opening balance 4,45,105.51 4,456,106.51
Add: Premium recelved on Issue and conversion of shares 3.37.500.00 -
Closing balance 7,82,805.51 4,458,108.51
Statutory reserves under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Opening balance 1,21,268.37 1,16,375.40
Add: Current year transfer 11,652.07 5.802.97
Closing balance 1,32,820.44 1,21,288.37
Impalrment reserves

Opening balance 18,123.85 2,566.51
Add: Current year transfer 35 878.31 16.537.34
Closing balance 54,102.18 18,123.85
Retained samings

Opening balance 2,79,275.98 2,78,966.42
Add: Transferred from Statement of profit and loss 57,760.25 24,906.32
Less: Transfer to statutory reserves {11,652.07) (6,892.97)
Less: Transfer to Impaiment reserves (36,978.31) {16,637.34)
Lese: Share issue expenses (net of tax) - {1,583.32)
Items of other comprehensive Income recognised directly In retained earnings

Add: Other comprehensive (loss)income for the ysar 1.177.08 11673.131
Closing balance 2,90,883.03 2,79,27598

22.2 Securities premium
Securities premium is credited when shares are issuad at premium. It can be usad 1o issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or
dabenturas, write-off equity related expenses like underwriting costs etc.

22.3 Statutory reserves under section 28C of the NHB Act, 1987
As per Section 29C of National Housling Bank Act {(NHB), 1987, the Company Is required io transfer at least 20% of its net profits avery year to a reserve before
any dividend Is declared. For this purpose, any Speclal Reserves created by the Company under Section 38({1){vill) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 Is considered to
be an eligible transfer.Thus, during the year ended 31 March 2020 and year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has transferred to Stetutory Reserves, an
amount arrived in accordance with Section 28C of the NHB Act, 1987.

22.4 Impairment Reserves as per RBI notification
As per DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.108/22.10.106/2019-20, where impalrment allowance under Ind AS 108 Is lower than the provisioning required unger RAEF==.

(Including standard assst provisioning), NBFCs/ARCs shall appropriate the difference from thelr net profit or |2 i & separate '|ms}fgﬁ:\@1l-_F!M|up_b.i:f},\ﬁ\
The balanca In the ‘Impairment Resarves’ shall not be reckoned for regulatory caplital. Further, no withdraw ¢d from this 'Ju@an without prirs ¢,
permisslon from the Department of Supervigion, RBI. (N

225 Retalned earnings {
Retained eamings pertain to the accumulated samings / losses made by the Company over the years. xl,\




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formeriy known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Noiss to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

23 Interest Income
|Amount in Re. 000"

‘fear ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
On financlal assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans 8,77.92148 7,16,830.84
Interast Income on deposits with banks 24,998.42 14,160.92
Interest Income on corporate deposit 3,227.40 1,000.6¢
Other interest income 2.917.58 5,882.70
9,09,084.86 7.37,893.18
Net gain on falr value changes
(Amount in Rs. '000"
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Net gain on financial Instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments in mutual funds 2 384.50 16.502.98
238450 1580298
Total net gain on falr value changes
Falr Value changes:
-Raalisad 2,384.50 15 602.98
Total net gain on fair value changes 2 384.50 15.502.98

25 Other Income

{Amount in Rs. ‘000’

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Income from adveriisment 9,353.50 6,000.00
Unwinding Interest Income 189.16 198.69
Modification (restructuring) gain on financial assets 1,843.12 -
Gain on termination of lease 84.681 -
Miscellansous Income 108.80 584.12
11,589.18 8,782.71

Finance costs

{Amount In Rs. 000"

Contributlon to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Year ended Yaar anded
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
On financlal llabllities measured at amortisad costs
Interast on borowings (cther than debt securities) 5,28,783.55 4,66,700.556
Interast on debt securliles 79,038.49 53,348.09
Interest on leasa llabliitles 713.31 841.12
Bank charges and cthers ___7703.56 3,494.58
6,16,238.01 5,23,384.34
Impairment on financlal instruments
|Amount In Rs. "000'|
Year ended Year anded
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cin financial insfrurmnni measured ai amortised cost
Loans
Impairment loss allowance 31,965.28 4,101.85
Writs offs 3.763.14 1,669.57
35.718.42 5,671.42
28 Employes benefits expense
_ [Amount in Rs. '000°)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Salarlas and wages 1,23,260.92 1,13,238.75
Gratulty and Leave expenses {refer note 38) 5,270.66 3,366.12
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statemants for the year ended 31 March 2021
Depreclation and amortisation

| Amount In Rs. ‘000"

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Depreciation of plant, property and equipment 2,243.08 3,001.38
Depriclation of Right of use assets 6,620.86 5,678.91
Amortisation of Intanglble asset 73.57 186.84
7.840.48 8,866.13
Other axpenses
- Amount in Rs. 000"
Yoar ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Elaciricity expenses 370.00 799.37
Rant 454.03 128.06
Repairs and mainienance
- Cthers 208.83 214.74
Insurance 2,762.32 3,009.24
Rates and texas 3,192.08 1,714.84
Payments to auditors (Refer Note below) 2,576.00 1,820.00
Computer and software axpenses 2,383.7¢ 2,089.26
Communication expenses 2,402.83 2,277.52
Professional, legal and consultancy fees 9,845.62 14,983.66
Printing and etaticnery 2,238.74 1,616.84
Travelling, conveyance and boarding expenses 11,338.01 18,700.08
Advertising and marketing expenses 1,061.43 635.10
Corporate soclal responsibliity {Refer Note 43) 1,850.00 1,196.10
Brokerage and commission 34.85 14.62
Miscellansous expenses 7.126.27 8288.31
47.023.37 56,608.52
Note: Payments to auditors
Audit fees 1,283.60 1,300.00
Tax audit fees 161.00 240.00
Certification work 760.00 280.00
Taxatlon matter 250.00 -
Qut of pocket axpensa 90.50 -
2,575.00 1,820.00
Tax sxpanse
{Amount in Rs. ‘000"
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current tax expense
Current tax for the year 18 140.00 11.340.92
18,140.00 11,340.02
Deforrod taxes
Relzting to origination and reversal of iemporary differences 654.20 152.43
Net deferred tax expense 654.20 152.43
Earller yoar tax adjustment 372.83
Earlier year tax adjustments 372.83 -
Total Income {ax expense 19,167.03 11,483.35
Tax reconclllation
{Amount In Rs. '000'|
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit before Income tax expense 76,027.38 38,380.87
Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 26.17%
Tax at statutory Income tax rate 18,361.08 9,161.07
Tax offect of amounts which are not deductible / not taxable In calculating taxable Income
Tax Impact on expenses which Is non deductible 1,482.07 204.74
Tax impact on deduction under Sectlon 36(1){vili) of the Income Tax Act, 1861 (2,048.85) {1,483.14)
Impact of differanca In tax rate on cerialn Hems - 3,610.68
Earllar year tax adjustments e 372.83 -
Income tax axpense N 19,167.03 _—
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formely known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limitecd)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
31.2 Deferrad tax movement related to tha following:

1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

{Amount in Rs. '000°;

Deferred tax assets (net) As at Recognised Recognised | Recognized In As at
31March2020 | In Statement | In OCI equity 31 March 2021
of Profit and
Loss
Daferred tax asset on account of:
Provision for Impalrment of assats 8,464.86 7,061.18 - - 16,646.84
Provision for smployee bensfits 2,761.73 803.86 - - 3,666.59
Shars lssue expenses 401.68 205.62 - - 607.30
Temporary difference on depreclation on property plant and 1,146.86 164.80 - - 1,311.46
aquipment
Uneamed processing fee - 656.39 - - 658.39
Transaction costs on Loans 19,800.72 (4,319.83) - - 15,481.09
Lease llablitiss | 162.34 (106.02) - - 67.32
32,757.79 4,560.20 - - 37,316.99
Deferrad tax labliity on account of:
Traneaction costs on borrowings 4,928.14 6,1456.44 - - 10,073.58
Modification (restructuring) gain on financlal assets - 483.88 - - 483.88
Remeasurement of gains/ {losses) on defined bensfit plans - | (396.92), 396.92 | - -
4,928.14 5,213.40 308.92 - 10,537.48
27,820.65 (684.20) {305.02) - 26,779.53 |
1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020
) . {Amount in Rs. 000",
Deferred tax asssts (net) As at Recognleed Recognised | Recognized in As at
31 March 2020 In Statement In OCI | aquity 31 March 2021
of Profit and
Loss
| Deferrad tax asset on account of:
Provision for impairment of assets 8,790.92 {315.28) - 8,484.66
Provislon for employse benefits 1,632.84 1,128.89 - . 2,761.73
I Share Issue expansas - - - 401.88 401.68
Temporary diffarence on depreciation on property plant and
equipmertt 766.41 380.25 . 1,148.66
Transaction costs on Loans 18,670.37 1,230.36 - 1,800.72
Lease llablltios 18263 | 20.20) - 162.34 |
29,052.17 2,403.04 - 401.68 32,787.79 .
Transaction costs on borrowings 2,900.86 2,027.28 . - 492814 |
Remeasurement of gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans - | 520.00 529.09) -
2,900.86 2,556.37 (529.00) - 4914
27,061.31 | {18243 520.00 | 401.68 27.829.65
A ASSN f//F—\\
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

9 Investment property
(Amount In Rs. '000")

\Particulars Frasholdland | Total
Gross block
As at 1 Aprll 2019 250.M 250.11
Additions | - -
Delstions | - -
As at 31 March 2020 | 28071 2507
Additions | - =

_ Deletions - -
As at 31 March 2021 250.71 250.71

i

Accumulated depreclation |
As at 1 April 2019 - -
Charge for the year - -

_ Deletions - .
As at 31 March 2020 - | =
Charge for the year - -
Deletions - ) o -

| As at 31 March 2021 | - .

Net block
As at 31 March 2021 250.71 250.711
As at 31 March 2020 250.71 250.71

Notes:

The Company’s Investment property is a plece of land in India, currently for undetermined use. The Company has no restrictions on the
reallsabllity of its Investment propertles and no contractual obligations to either purchase, construct or develop Investment properties or for
repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

{a) Fair value of Investment prop=riy (Amount In Rs. 000"}
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Freshold land 148.78 148.78 |

The falr value of investment property has been determined by an Independent valuer, who has adequate professional experlence as well as
adequate expertise in the location and category of the Investment property. The value Is determined based on the rate prescribed by
govemment authorlties for the properly. Management believes that the net recoverable value of the property would be higher than camying
amount and therefore, no impalrment has been made. The resultant fair value estimates for Investmant property Is Included In level 2.

There are no amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss account in relation to the above investment property.



Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housling Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

10 Proparty, plant and squipment

|
Computer and
Furniture and Leasehold
Particulars Office aquipment data proceasing Total
fixtures equipment Improvements
Groas biock [Cosl] [ = l
An at 1 April 2010 1,579.16 796.32 1,141.83 3,066.04 8,882.34
Additiona 715.02 53.38 725.50 3208.49 1,822,309
Deletion 44.06) - - - {44.08)
As at 31 March 2020 2,250.12 | B48.70 1,867.33 3,304.53 8,380.08
Addltlons 424.26 95.43 1,823.72 147.63 2,201.03
Deletion (7.49! - - - | (749
As at 31 March 2021 2,080.88 | 944.13 3,491.05 3.842.18 10,644.22
Accumulated depreclation
As at 1 Aprll 2019 551.51 226.24 308.78 1,037.28 2128.19
Chargae for the year 850.67 166.78 791.40 1,282.53 3,091.38
Deletions 123.74: - - - {23.74)
| As at 31 March 2020 1 1,378.44 386.02 1,100.18 2,320.79 519443
Charge for the year 528.38 126.20 519.89 1,068.78 2,243.08
| Deletions (.45 - - - 16.46)
| As at 31 Mareh 2021 1,801.38 512.22 1.619.87 3,398.57 7,432.04
Net block
As at 31 March 2020 &71.08 462.68 767.18 1,084.74 3,168.25
| As at 31 March 2021 768.50 431.91 1,871.18 143.69 3.212.18
10 Other Intanglble assets __(Amount In Rs. 000"}
Computer
Particulars software
Gross block
Cost at 1 Aprll 2019 374.01
Additions -
Delstons -
As at 31 March 2020 374.81
Additions -
Deletions -
As at 31 March 2021 374.61
Accumulated amortisation
Cost at 1 April 2019 50.00
Charge for the year 188.84
Deletlons - -
As at 31 March 2020 257.84
Charge for the year 73.57
Deletlons -
Asn gt 31 March 2021 331.41
Net block [
Aas at 31 March 2020 118.77
As at 31 March 2021 43.20
11 _Right of uss Asest 1Amount in Rs. '000")
| Partlculars — Office buliding |
Gross amount as at 1 April 2019 15,213.10
Additions 1,084.18
| Delstions -
| As at 31 March 2020 16,277.28 |
Additions 10,170.78 |
| Deletions 1426.89!
| As at 31 March 2021 26,021.37 |
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April 2018 5,192.74
Charge for the year 5,578.91 e
Deletions - / _HX
 As at 31 March 2020 10,771,865 = /-/ \
Charge for the year 6,523.86 ,./f o~ f ‘\.,3
| Deletions 144.96) / '\ !
| As st 31 March 2021 16,250,560 \ Il
Net block il
As st 31 March 2020 5.505.63 | \
As at 31 March 2021 9,770.81 A\
Wy, .\\ e
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

_iAmount in Rs. '000'|
Yoar encled
31 March 2020
Particular 31Y :;:r::?ndm {restated on
account of right
lssue)
Net profit attributable to equity holders 57,760.35 24.906.32
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for basic eamings per share® 38,507.57 31,601.29
Eamning per share (Basic and Diluted) in Rs. 1.46 0.79
Nominal valus oer ghare (¥ 10 10

* Welghted average number of squity shares outstanding ae at 31 March 2020 Includes non cumulstive compulsorlly convertible prafersnce shares
Related party diaclosures

Related party disclosures as required under Indian Accounting standard {Ind AS) - 24, * Related Party Disclosure” are glven balow.

List of related parties
Nature of relationship [Name of related party
Helding Company Svatantra Holdings Private Limited

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP} Ms. Ananyashrea Birla, Chairparson
Mr. Vineet Chaitres, Managing Director
Mr. Anil Chiranla, Director

Mr. Sahll Mehta, Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Tasnesm Mandsorwala, Company Secretary

Transactions during the period with related parties :

Amount In Rs. 000"

Year ended Year snded
Transactions with Nature of transactions 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Svatantra HoldIng Private Limited Compulsorily convertible - 3,00,000.00
preferance sharss
Svatantra Holding Private Limited Equity shares issued 1,50,000.00 -
Svatantra Hoiding Private Limited Conversion of Preference shares 3,00,000.00 -
Into equity
Mr. Sahil Mehta Remuneration 3,340.00 3,340.99
Ms. Tasnesem Mandscrwala |Remunerstion 900.00 900.00

Note:
1. There I8 no outstanding balance as at 31 March 2021(Previous year. Rs Nil) with relatad partles
2.Employae banefits In relation to gratuity ars calculated at the Company level and hence not congldered In above disclosure.

Capltal management

The Company’s capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital to cover risk Inherent In business and is meeting the capital adequacy
requirements of Natlonal Housing Bank (NHB). The same le done through a mix of either equity and / or combination of short term / long term debt as may be
approprigte. The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basls of cperations and capital expenditure. The adequacy of the Company's capltal Is
monHored using, among other measures, that Includes the regulations issued by NHB.

The Company Is subject to the capital adequacy requirsments of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Under RBI's capital adequacy guldeines, the Company is required
to maintain a capital adequacy ratio consisting of Tler | and Tler Il Capital. The Tler-| capital, 2t any polnt of {ime, shall not be less than 10 per cent. The total of Tier-Il
capital, at any point of time, shall not exceed 100 per cent of Tier-1 capital. The minimum capital ratio as prescribed by RBI guldelines and applicable 1o the Company,
consieting of Tler | and Tier )l capital, shall not be less than 14 per cent of its aggragate risk weighted asssts on-balance shest and of risk adjusted value of off-
balance eheet.

The caplial structure Is monitored on the basls of net debt to equity and maturity proflle of overall debt pertfolio. The Company's policy is In line with Non-Banking
Financlal Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 which cumently permlis HFCs to borrow up o 13 times of thelr net owned funds
{"NOF"}.

There Ie no allocation of capital required as Company is primarily operating In single segment |.s. financing, . The Company's policles In respect of capital management
I& regularly reviewed by Board of Diractors. =

/ \"‘\ -'f"/jff _-_H%%?l:-.
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notas to the financial statemaents for the year ended 31 March 2021

Regulatory capital (l_\mount in Rs. '000"%
o Particulars As at - hsat
| 31 March 2029 | 31 March 2020 |
Eaultv share capital 4.14.776.78 3.02.275.75
Nen-Cumulative compulsorlly convertivle prefersnce shares capital - 3,00,000.00
Securitles pramium 7.82,605.51 4,45,106.51
Retained esamings 2,90,683.03 2,78,275.98
Statutory reserves 1,32,620.44 1,21,288.37
Less:
- Deferred Revenue Expendlture (represent prepaid expenses) {5,819.37) (7,983.41)
- Intangible Asset (43.20) (16.77)
-Deferred tax Asset (26,779.53} (27,629.85)
[Tier | Caphal 1588,242.83 | 14,11,095.78 |
- Loss Allowances for loans - Stage | 26,385.16 7,262.88
Tier Il Caplital 26,385.10 7.292.88
Tier | + Tler Il Capltal 16,14,627.70 |  14,19,288.68

The Company has complied In full with all Its externally Impesed capital requiremants over the reported period.
Loan covenanta

In order 1o achieve this overall chjective, the Company's capltal management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that i mests the financial covenants attached to
the Interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capltal structure requirements. Breach in mesting these financlal covenants would permit the bank to immediately
call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financlal covenants of any barrowing in the current period. Loan covanants mainly Include minimum
CRAR of 14% (Previous year 13%), retlc of total outetanding llablitty to total net worth to be less than or equal to 13 times ({ previous year 14 times) etc.

Falr value measurement
Financlal Instruments by catagory {Amount in Rs. 000"
As at As at
[Partioutars Cotogory | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 |
|
Financlal assets:
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised Cost 8,74,060.44 1,03,823.76
Bank balanca other than cash and cash equivalents Amortised Cost 3,01,844.57 2,09,814.41
Loans Amortised Cost 80,87,045.14 68,83,227.09
Other financial assets Amortised Cost 19.212.55 5321.11
Total financlal assets 92.82,152.70 72,02,286.37
Financlal llabllities:
Trade payables Amortised Cost 4,227.11 4,103.21
Other payables Amortised Cost 6,591.29 2,639.35
Debt securities Amortlsed Cost 9,22,208.54 5,26,300.97
Borrowings (other than debt sacurities) Amortised Cost 66,58,134.62 52,02,120.52
Leage Liabllitles Amortised Cost 9,088.55 5,639.68
Cther financlal liabilitles (excluding lease llabilities) Amortised Cost | 33812.64 | 28,612.19
Total financlal llabllities 76,34,072.68 57.60,315.92

Fair value hisrarchy

The fair values of the financlat assets and ilabllitles are Included ai the amount that would be recelved to eell an ssset or paid to transfer a liabllity In an orderly
transaction between market parlicipants at the measurement date. This section explains the Judgements and estimates made In determining the falr valuas of the
financial Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amorilsed cost and for which falr values are disclosed In the financial
statements. To provide an Indication about the reliabliity of the Inputs used in determinlng falr value, the Company has classlfled Its financial instruments Into the three
levels prescribed under the Indlan Accounting standard. These three levels are defined basad on the observability of significant Inputs to the meagurement, as follows.

Level 1: Lovel 1 hlerarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. For example, listad equity Instruments that have quoted market price.

Level 2: The falr value of financial Instruments that are not traded In an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) Is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of obeervable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. if all significant inputs required to fair
value an Instrument are obgervable, the Instrument Is Included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the Instrument is included In level 3. This Is the cas= !o: Liisted aquity

sscurities, contingant considaration and Indemntiication asset included In level 3. y,';»"-’ G _“"».\
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Svatantra Mlcro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notss to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Financial assete and llabliiies measuraed at amortisad cost at each reporting date

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, ather bank balances, other financial assets, trade payables and other payabies and other financial liabilitles are
considared to be approximately squal to the fair value due to their short term maturities.

{Amount in Rs. '000"
Particulars As at As at

. 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

| Carrying Value Falr Value Carying Value | Fair Value

[Financlal assete measured at amortised cost

Cash and cash squivalent 8,74,060.44 8,74,060.44 1,03,923.76 1,03,923.76
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 3,01,844.57 3,01,844.57 2,09,814.41 2,00,814.41
Loans 80,87,046.14 81,48,556.14 68,83,227.09 69,61,856.39
Other financlal agsets 19,212.55 | 19.212.55 5,321.11 6,821.11 |
Total financlal assets 92,82152.70 | 63,43,663.70 72,02,280.37 72,80,015.67 |
Finanelal llabilities:

Trade payables 4,227.1 4,227.11 402113 4,021.13
Other payables 6,691.29 6,691.29 2,639.36 2,639.36
Debt securilles 9,22,208.54 9,31,204.82 5,26,300.97 5.28,152.22
Borrowings (other than debt securitles) 86,68,134.82 66,89,368.51 52,02,120.62 §2,20,352.18
Lease Liabiltles ©,996.66 9,998.65 5,639.68 5,630.68
Other financlal llabillties {axcluding lease liabilites) 33,812.54 33,812.54 28,612.19 23,812.18
Total financlal llabllities 76,34,872.65 | 78,75,202.82 57,89,233.84 57,09,318.78 |

i} Loans - All the loans given are &t variable rate of Interest and hance, the fair value of floating rate loans are desmed to b equivalent to the camrying value.

11y Borrowings - All the borrowing taken are at floating rate of Intersst and hence, Its falr value are deemed to be equivalent to the camrying value adjustad with un-
amortize transaction cost.

iii} Debt securilies are lease labilliss - The falr value of debt securities are determinsd by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using current market
Interest rates charged for similar new loans.

During the perlods mentloned above, there have been no transfers amongst the levels of hierarchy.

Financlal risk management

Risk Management

The Company Is expesed to certaln financlal risks namely credit risk, liquidity risk and market riak |.e. interest riek, foreign currency risk and price risk. The Company's
primary focus Is to achieve better predictabliity of financial markets and minimize potential adverse effects on lis financlal performance by effactively managing the
risks on its financlal assete and liabilities.

The Principal objective In Company’s risk managament processes 1s to measure and monitor the various risks assoclated with the Company's and to follow policles
and procedures to address such risks. The Company 's rlek managemant framework Is driven by lts Board and its sub-committees including the Audit Committes, the
Asset Liablity Management Committee and the Risk Management Committee. The Company gives due Importance to prudent lending practices and have
implemented suilable measures for risk mitigation, which Include verification of credit history from credit Information bureaus, personal verification of a customer's
business and resldence, valuation of collateral, technical and legal verifications, conservative loan to value, and required term cover for insurance.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the riek that the Company will not be able to settle or mest Its obligations on time or &t a reasonable price. For the Company, iquldity risk
arises from obligations on account of financlal Rabliities —debt sacurities, borrowing, trade payabies and other financlal llabililes. The Company manages liquidity risk
by malntaining adequate cash reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual caeh flows, and by matching the maturity proflles of financial assets and
liablities.

The tables below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial llabllities:

As at 31 March 2021 ) . jAmount in Rs. ‘000"
'__ Within 1 year 1-5years | B-10 years | Bayand 10 yoars| Total |
Trads payables 4,227.11 - - 4,227.11
Other payables 6,591.20 - - - 6,8901.20
Debt securitles 91,838.60 11,37,681.63 - 12,29,720.03
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 22,39,381.54 61,66,956.23 7,27,411.44 2,256.38 81,26,004.59
Leasa liablijes 6,167.34 4,741.96 - 10,860.20
Other financial llabliiles 33.812.54 . - - 33,812.54
|Total |  23,82.008.32 | ©2,00,579.71 | 7.27,411.44 2,255.38 | $4,11.264.85
As at 31 March 2020 - (Amount in Rs. '000"
L | Within 1 yoar 1-8yeare 5-10ycors | Boyond 10 years Total
Trade payables 4,103.21 | . - - 4,103.21
Other payables 2,639.35 - - 2,630.36

Debt securities "*-\ 63,238.50 6,90,715.50 - - 743,034.00
Borrowings (other than debt securitias) / 15,95,297.21 45,56,348.75 7.59,855.32 28,137.69 , B30 630.87
Lease lisbilities m 4,598.19 1,436.30 - 72N g
i _a - qu'|I iy ]
= il '

Other financial liabilities .24 \ 2861248 | - A

Total (] SN 16,83,388.04  52.48,600.55 7.80.866.32 W@K _
A 5 /i “ 5 i
\ W/, |
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Svatantra Micro Houslng Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statemants for the year ended 31 March 2021

Market risk

Forsign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the falr valus or future cash flows of an exposurs will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates. The Company is not
exposad to foraign currency exposura.

interest rate risk

The Company Is subject 1o Interest rate risk, since the rates of loans and borrowing might fluctuate over the tanure of instrument. Interest rates are highly sensitive to
many faclors beyond contral, inciuding the monetary policles of the Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the financlal secior In India, domestic and international
economic and political conditions, inflation and other factors. In order to manage inerest rate risk, the Company seek to oplimize borrowing prefile between short-term
and long-term loans. The liablliles ars categorized Into various time buckets based on their maturitles and Asset Liability Management Committee supsrvise an
Interest rate sensitivity report periodically for assessment of interest rate risks. Loans given to customers are at floating rate of interest.

Detalls of loans and borowings
|Amount in Rs. *000"|

| Asat34 March | As at31 March

Particulars 2021 2020
Loans (variable) |7 80,87,045.14| ©68,83,227.09
Total loans {variable) 80,87,045.14 08,83,227.08
Berrowings and debt securities

Bomowings (variable) 86,68,134.62 52,02,120.62
Borrowings {fixed rate) 8 22 208.54 §.26,300.97

Total borrowings 75.80,343.16 | 57,28,421.40 |

Sensitivity analysls

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of the Company's Statement of
profit and loss:
|Amount In Rs. ‘000"

Impact on profit befors tax

Interest rate sensitivity® Year anded Yaar ended

31 March 2021 = 31 March 2020
Loans
Increase by 50 basis points 40,435.23 34,416.14
Decrease by 50 basis points {40,435.23) (34,416.14)
Borrowings
Increase by 50 basis points {33,280.67) (26,010.60)
Decreasa Ly 50 basls points , 33.290.67 | 26 .010.60 |
* Hoiding all other variables as consient
Price risk
Exposure

The Company's exposurs price risk ariges from Invesiments held and classified in the balance sheet elther as fair value through other comprehensive income or at falr
valus through profit and loss. To manage the price risk arising from investments, the Company diversifias its pertfolio of asssts. The Company do not have any
Investment as on balancesheel date either at fair value through other comprehensive income or at fair value through profit and loss.

Credlt risk

Credit risk Is the risk thet the Company will incur & loss because Its customers or countsrparties fail to discharge thelr contractual obligations. The Company’s
sxposure 1o credlt risk Is Influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, investments, loan assets and other financial assets. The Company
continuously monltors defaults of customere and other counterparties and incorporatas thie information into iie credh risk controls.

Gradit sk management
Cradit quality of assets

Cradit rigk s the single largest risk for the Company's business. Management thersfore carefully manages Its exposure to credit rigk. A centralisad risk management
function oversess the risk management framework, which periadically presents an overview of credit ek of porifolio to the Risk Management Committes.

Cradit-worthiness Is checked and documentad prior 1o signing any contracts, based on market Information. Management endeavours to improve its underwriting
standards {o reduce the cradit ek the Company is exposed to from time to time.

Expected Credlt loss (ECL}):
Credit Quality of Loans asssts: .
The following table sets out information about credit quality of loans measured at amortised c:
carying amount.




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limlted)

Notes to the financial statements for the year snded 31 March 2021

_|Amount in Rs. '000")
31-March-21  31-March-20 |

Gross carrying value

Stage 1 77.90,076.86 |  66,91,477.00
Stage 2 2,13,378.38 1,14,075.80
|Siap= 3 | 144260, 59| 1,10,450.30 |
| Total Gross camrying valus as at reporting date | 81,47,727.12 |  69,16,003.10 |

Managemont of crndlt ﬂsk for financlal auh

country.

Other ﬂnancual assets msasured at amnrﬂsed coat includes loans and advancas to employess security deposits Insurance claim recsivables and other recoverable.
Cradit risk relatedi to thesa other financial assets |s managed by monitoring the recoverabllity of such amounts continuously.

Loane

The Company closely monitors the credit-worthinass of the borrower's through intemal systems and appralsal process to assess the credlt risk and define credit imits
of borrower thersby limiting the credit sk by setting limits on the amount of risk H |s willing to accept for individual counterparties. These processes include a detalled
appralsal methodology kientification of risks and sultabls structuring and credft risk mitigation measures. The Company assesees incraase In credit risk on an engoing
basle for amounts loan recsivables that becoms past due and default is considerad 1o have occurmed when amounts recelvable become €0 days past due. The
Company has restructured or rescheduled In the terms of the cerlain loan accounts In the current year on account of COVID-19 related restructuring measures
prescribad by the Reserve Bank of India. This has resulted in Increased management estimation over determination of losses for such restruciured loans.

Collective assessment of ECL

Since tha Company is into retall lending business to rural and semi-urban areas which are are greater in number but lesser In vaiue, there Iz no significant credit sk of
any individual customer thet may impact Company adversely, and hence the Company has calculated lts ECL allowances on a collecilve basls. ECL assessment has
bean dona on an individual basis on the Company's ingignflicant exposure on corporate and bullder loans.

Inputs considered In the ECL model

Definition of default

A default on a financial asset Is when the counterparly fails 1o make the contractual payments within 80 days of when they fall due. Accordingly, the financlal assets
shall be clagsifiad as Stage 3, If on the reporting date, It has been 90 days past dus. Non-payment on another obligation of the same customer ls also considered as a
etage lIl.

Exposure at default {(EAD)

The EAD represants expaected outstanding exposurse subject to credit risk at the period/date, when default Is consldered. The Company does cash fiow mapping based
on contractual maturity for loang In Stage 11, using the exposure at default In future years and the probability of default sstimation based on macro variables. For stage |
and stage lIl, as an approximation balance shest outstanding Is used.

Loss given default (LGD)

it Is defined as the percentage risk of exposure that Is not expected to be recovered in the svent of defaull.

Based on an analysis of historical data, the Compeny has estimated the loes glven default, using historical recovery experience and recovery cost. This is referred to
as tha workout method. Such recoverles are discounted using Interest rate of the loans. While calculating LGD percentage, 100% recoverles are estimated for the
cases where the recoveries are absolutely certaln to happen within a short period of time.

Probabiliity of Default (PD)

"Probabillty of default” (PD) is deflned as the probabliity of whether the borrowers will default on thelr obligations in the future. For assets which are In Stage 1, a 12-
month PD Is raquired. For Stage 2 asset's a Ifetime PD is required while Stage 3 assats are conskiered to have a 100% PD. Historical DPD data Ie utliized to calculate
through the cycle PD. PD analysis tracks the migration behaviour of a static pool of loans active at the end of each year acroes different buckets- Current, 1-29 DPD,
30-58 DPD, 60-89 DPD, 90+ DPD for the 12 menth and Iifetime period.

Forward looking Information

Forward looking Information is Incorporated In the measuremertt of probability of default and consequently in measurement of ECL. The Vasicek model Is used for
converling the TTC (Through-the-Cycle) PD Into FC (Foracast) PD. The model calculates an AC {Asset Correlation) factor and converts the probabliity using the
macro-aconomic variable selected which Is GDP growth rate. Basad on the conslderation of & variety of external actual and forecast information, the Company forms
a 'basa cass' view of the future direction of GDP growth rate as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios. This procass involves developing
two or more addltional economic scenarios and considering the relstive probabllities of each outcome. The base case represents a most likely outcome while the other
scenarios represant mare optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes.

Further, In the global pandemic Covid 19, management overlays are applied in determining forward focking ecenarios. It is considerad by evaluating all relevant
Intamal and reasonably available external data namaly Industrial research by various credit raling agancies.

Significant increase In credit risk

An assassmant of whether credlt risk has Increased significantly since Initial recognition Is performed at each reporting period by considerng the change in the risk of
default occcurring over the remalning ilfe of the loan exposure. However, unless ldentifled at an earller stage, the Company have determined all assets are deemed to
have suffered a significant Increase In credit sk when 30 days past due.

The Company hava also conducted a quantilative assessmant of significant increase In credit risk (SICR) of the loan portfolio with respect to the covid 19 pandemic
scenario, based on analysls of parcentage Increase In probabliity of default.

Policy for writa off of Loan Assets

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when there Is no realistic
determines that the debtor doas not have assets or sources of Income that could genernie
financlal assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities unde:
appropriats. Any recoveries made are racognised in Statement of Profit or Loes.

;_recovery. Thig Is generally the casg: qupﬂ ,'r]'irl.u&m\.rg_
fo repay the amounts subject mﬁ rite-off. wa:f,




Svatantra Micro Housling Finance Corporation Limited
{Formarly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statoments for the year anded 31 March 2021

Collateral
The Company holds collateral io mitigate credit risk assoclated with financlal asssts. The main types of collateral include residential propertles. The collateral
presented relates to Insiruments (individual loans) that are measured at amortised cost,

(Amount In Rs. ‘000"
As at 31-03-2021| As at 31-03-2020

"Progorties (amount of collateral) 1,49,51,576.88 | 1,31,66,371.84
Credit Risk exposure
I Expacted credit losses for financlal assets other than loans N ) (Amount In Rs. "000)
|As at 31 March 2021 Estimated gross | Expected credit | Carrying amount
carrying amt at losseos net of
default Impalrmaent
provision
Cash and cash equivalents 8,74,050.44 - 8.74,050.44 |
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3,01,844.57 - 3,01,844.57
Security deposits 3,928.59 - 3,928.50
Cther financial assets 15,283.96 - 15,283.96
As at 31 March 2020 Estimated gross | Expected cradit ' Camrying amount|
carrying amt at losses net of
default Impairment
| provision |
Cash and cash equlvalent 1,03,823.76 | - 1,03,923.76
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivaients 2,09,814.41 - 2,00,814.41
Security deposiis 3,7985.34 - ‘ 3,795.34
Other financial assets 1,626.77 | 1,626.77

Il) Expected credit loss for loans
Changes In the grosa carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans from baglnning to end of reporting peried:
\Amount In Rs. ‘000"

. = Particulars | Stace 1 |  Stage2 8age3 |
Grosa camylng amount as at April 1 2019 [ 54,78,341.84 | 1,62,789.58 | 87,661.07
Assets originated 21,80,887.79 7,489.09 316.12
Net transfer between stages

Transfer to stage 1 62,045.02 (69,174.84) (2,870.08)
Transfer to stage 2 (68,941.66) 70,178.80 {1,237.34)
Transfer to stage 3 (35,665.66) (32,072.92) 87,628.57
Assels derecoanised or collectad |excluding write offs) 18,25,300.43/! 126.143.92)| |41,038.04
Gross carrying amount as at March 31 2020 88.91.477.01 1.14,075.78 | 1,10.450.30
Assels originaied 22,33,861.51 26,960.24 2,543.15
Net transfar between stages

Transfer o stage 1 21,477.62 (17,515.01) (3.962.51})
Transfer to stage 2 {1,37,103.60) 1,42,327.44 (5,223.76)
Transfer to stage 3 (23,847.34) (36,366.25) €0,213.59 |
\Assats derecognised or collected (excluding writs offs 19,95,776.18) (1810383  (19.760.89}
Gross carrying amount as at March 31 2021 77.90.078.85 2,13.378.38 1.44,260.80
Reconclllation of loss allowance provision from heginning to end of reporting period: = . —
= Particulars Stage 1 Stage2 | Staged
Loss allowance as on April 1 2019 3,966.18 11,220.35 15,032.98
Assets originated 3,876.18 4,648.06 9,976.28
Net transfor between stages

Transfer to stage 1 4,266.90 (3,868.74) (397.18)
Transfer to stage 2 (118.08} 280.30 {171.22)
Transfer to stage 3 (66.48) (2,678.78) 2,745.24
Asgets der=coonised or collectad |excluding writs offs) ; 141,630.84) 12,520.34) 17,747.74) |
|Loss allowanca as on March 31 2020 7.202.88 6,980.858 19.436.38
Asgets originatad 22,616.19 11,008.42 6,801.38
Net transfer between stages

Transfer to stage 1 1,638.33 (940.96) (697.37)
Transfer to stage 2 (297.13) 1,216.47 (918.34)
Transfer to stage 3 (86.58) (2.614.92) 2,701.60
|Assate derecoanised or collected (excludiig write offs! ! _(4,778.53| 1217344, _ 15417.87)
[Loss allowance as on March 31 2021 _ 26,385.10 1347642~ . (@],

DN f57 %
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o, / \ f/'?
Sy e \R“\‘_\ o



7

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Houslng Finance Corporation Limited}

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Concentration of loans

The Company monltors concentration of credit risk on the basls of housing/*on housing in which the borrowsr orerates;

|Concentration by type of loan As at 31 March | As at 31 March

| 2021 2020
Housing 78,27,728.49 67,00,743.684
Nen houslng 3,21,084.81 2,16,195.56
Gross carrying Amount - 814881340 |  9,16,630.19

Impact of Govid =19 pandemic on the credit risk

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe including the current sacond wave witnessed across the country has contributed to a significant decline and
volatility in the global and Indlan financial markets and siowdown In the economic activities. Reserve Bank of India (RBI) had Issued guldelines relating to COVID-19
Regulatory Package dated 27 March 2020, 17 April 2020 and 23 May 2020 and in accordance therswith, the Company basis its Board approvad policy has offered
maratarium on the payment of EMI's falling due betwean 01 March 2020 and 31 August 2020 to Its eligible borrowers. For all such accounts where the moratorium was
granted, the asset classification remalned standstll during the moratorium period. Thereafter, the assets are belng classified as par the extant RBI Instructions / IRAC

NOImSs.

The Company recognizes the need to make reasonable estimatlan of the impact of ongoing sacond wave of the pandemic on the repayment abliity of its bormowers.
The Company has analysed its porifolio based on varlous parameters to agcartain the Impact of Covid-19 and basls of its estimates, assumptions and judgments has
recognised an edditional ECL provision of Rs. 20,000 thousands as of 31 March 2021. Given the uncertainty over the potential macre-economic condition, the impact
of the COVID-19 may affect the underlying assumptions and estimates used to prepara the financial statements, which may be dliferant from thet considered as at the
date of approval of the financlal statements. The Company will continue to closely monitor any materlal changes to future economic conditions and sultable effact will

be gliven In the respective future pariod.

Retirement benefit plans

(A) Defined bensflt obligation

38.1

3.2

The Company has the following defined benafits plans:
Particulars
Gratulty {non - funded)

As par Ind AS-19 ‘Emplovee Benefita', the disclosure of Emplovee benefits as defined in the Standard are given below:

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19, actuarial valuation was done in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plan of gratulty based on the following

Particulars

Actuarial assumptions
Mortality rate

Discount rata (per annum)
Rate of salary increase
Withdrawal | Rate of emiloyes tumover)

Particulars

Changes In the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year

interest expense

Current service cost

{Benaflt Paid From the Fund)

(Banefit pald directly by the employer)

Actuarial (galns) / losses on obligations - dua to change In demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains) / losses on oblligations - due to change in financial assumptions
Actuarlal (gains) / losses on obligatlons - due 1o experience

|Present value of abligation at the end of the year

Particulars

As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2021 2020
Indlan Assured  Indian Assured
Lives(2012-14)  Lives{2008-08)
Ultimate Mortality Utimate Mortallty
Ratas Rates
8.75% B.50%
7.50% 7.50%
1% atallages 1% atall ages
{Amount in Rs. '000")
For the year For the year
ended 31 March | ended 31 March
2021 2020

10,973.19 6,807.27

713.26 434.56

2,921.28 2,921.66

{145.96) (92.42)

{447.85) 1,518.26

(1,125.18) 583.96

12,888.74 10,973.19

As at 31 March 2025 at 31 March 202

Assets and Kablllies recognised In the balance shest

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year
Funded status - deficit

Net {llabllity) / assst recognised In the balance shoet

12,889

10,873




38.4 Expensses recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss

8.7

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

| Particulars

{Amount in Re. ‘000"
For the year For the ysar
ended 31 March  ended 31 March

i
Current servica cost
Past servica cost
Net Interest (Income)/ expense

Net gratuity cost racognised In the current year

Expanses recognised In the statement of Other comprahensive incoma (OCI)

[Particutars

Actuarial loss on post employment benefit obligation
Total remeasurement cost for the y=ar recoanised In OCI

Reconclllation of net asset / (llabllity} recognised:

IPll‘HGI.IIII‘I

Opening Net Liabllity

Expenses recognised at the and of pariod
Amount recognisad In other comprahensive income

Net Liability / (Assaet) Tranefer In
Net {Llability) / Assat Tranefer Out
Baneflt pald

Employer's Contribution

'Nat Liablilty/|Ass«!] Recognized In the Balance Shest

Sensitivity Analysls:

Particulars

Dalta sffect of +1% change in rate of discounting
Dela effect of -1% change in rate of discounting
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary Increase
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of sala-y Increase

Maturity analysls of projected benefit obligation

2,921.26 2,921.56

713.28 434.56

3,834.52 | 3,386.12
,_(Amount in Rs. ‘000"

ended 31 March | endad 31 March
2029 | 2020 |
1,673.00 | 2,102.22 |
1,573.00 2,102.22

~__[Amount in Rs. ‘000’

andad 31 March  ended 31 March
2021 2020
10,973.19 5,607.27
3,634.52 3,356.12
(1,673.00) 2,102.22
{145.98) (92.42)|
1280874 10073.49 |

|Amount In Rs. '000"|
FeaT | T i gueT

Year

1 year

Sumofyears 2to 5

Sum of ysars 6 10 10

Sum of yuars 11 and above

(B} Defined contribution plan

)

T O T
| ended 31 March | andad 31 March
AAE AR |
{(2,075.65) (1,794.83)
2,642.80 2,294.73
2,504.93 2,247.04
12.079.97) f __[1.794.53_|j
- Amount in Rs. ‘000"
ended 31 March | ended 31 March
| 2021 2020
830.77 761.54
1,120.07 1,204.07
773.39 814.35

6 37 534.80 613288.90

The Company contributes towards provident fund for employees which Is the defined contribution plan for qualifying employees. Under this Scheme, the Company Is
required o contribule specified parcentage of the payroll cost to fund the benefits. The Company has recognised Rs. 7,386.97 thousands and Rs.68,683 thousands
towards provident fund contributions In the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, respactively.

Lsases
Company as lsases

The Company's leased assets primarlly consist of leases for office premises & guest houses. Leases of office premlises and guest houses generally have lease term
between 1 fo 5 years. The Company has applied short tarm axemption for leases for premiess accordingly are excluded from Ind AS 116.

Set out balow are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognlsed and the movements during the pericd:

Particulars

| Amount in Rs. 000"

Deletion during the year
Depreclation axpanses for the year
‘As at March 31, 2020

Total
10,020.36
1,084.18

{6,578.91)
6.808.63

Addttions

Deletlon during the year
Depreciation expenses for the year
|As at Warch 31, 2021

10,170.76
=] (381.74)

/;’ ; _.rﬁal (5,523.86)

= .Fﬁ‘tii,m.u
~C |
I-II|
]
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease llabilities (Included under interest-bearing loane and borrowings) and the movements during the period:

1Amount in Rs. ‘000"
|Particulars | Total |
As at 1 April 2019 8,074.26
Additions 1,013.12
Accration of Interast 841.12
Payment (6,188.81)
|As at March 81, 2020 , 5.630.69
Additions 10,170.78
Accretlon of Interest 713.31
Deaduction (446.36)
Payment {6,078.87)
|As at March 31, 2021 i 9,008.55 |

Tha maturlty analysls of leasa liabilities are dleclosed in Nota 43.

The effective interest rate for lease liabilitles Is 11%, with maturity between 2021-2026

The following are the amounts recoonised In ool or loss: 1 Amount In Rs. '000";
Particulars For the year For the year

sndad 31 March  ended 31 March

- | 2021 2020
Depreciation expanse of right-of-use assets | 5,523.86 6,678.91
Flnance cost on lease liabilities 713.31 841.12
Expensa relating to short-tarm leases {Included In cther expanses) 454.03 128.05
Expense relating to leasas of low-value asgets {Included In other expenses) - -
Varleble lease pzyments (if any. included |n other exconses! - -

The Company had total cash outflows for Isases of Rs. 6,632.90 thousande in FY 2020-21 (Rs 6,316.86 thousands in FY 2018-20).
Segment Information

Business ssgmant

Qparating segments are reporied in a manner coneistent with the Internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM regularly

monitors and reviews the operating result of the whole Company as one segment of "Financing”. Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments®,
Company’s entlre business falls under this one operationat segment.

Entity wide disclosures

the

No revenue from transactions with a single extemal customer or counterparty amounted te 10% or more of the Company's total revenue in year ended 31 March 2021

and 31 March 2020

The Company operatss In single geography i.e. Indla and therefore, geographical information Is not required to be disclosed separately.

Contingent llabliiies and commitments

I. Contingent Liabllities: Rs. 11,380 thousands* (as at March 31, 2020 Rs. 11,380 thousands)

Il. Capltal Commiments : Rs. NIl (as at March 31, 2020 Rs. Nli)

ll. Undrawn Commitment given to Borrowers: Rs.1,157,446 thousands {as at March 31, 2020 Rs.1,106,636 thousands)

IV. Bank guarantes igsued by Banks favoring the NHB for refinance facilifes: Rs. 227,500 thousands (as at March 31, 2020 Rs. 187,600 thousands)

* Digputed Income tex demand against which the Company has preferred an appeal before Commigeloner of Income Tax (Appeals)

Following disclosures as required undar Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been made to the extent Information
available with the Company :

Amount in Rs. '000’)

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
() Principal amount remalning unpalid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year - ~ 82.08

(ii} Interest due thereon remalning unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting
year -
(i) The amount of interest pald by the buyer In terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Entsrprise Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made
to the suppller beyond the appointed day during each accounting ysar.

{iv) The amount of interest dus and payable for the pericd of delay in making payment
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the Interest specified under Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprise Development Act, 2008.

{v) The amount of interest accrued and remalning unpaid at the end of sach accounting e
yoar; and

{vl) The amount of further interest ramalning due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the Interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
the Micro, Small and Madium Entarprise Davelopment Act, 2006




Svatantra Micro Houslng Finance Corporation Limited
(Formely known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

43  Corporate soclal responsibliity {(CSR) expenditure
Ag per Section 135 of the Companles Act, 2013, a CSR commitiee has been formed by the Company. The arsas for CSR activities are eradicating
hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and sanitation and making avallable safe drinking water, promoting aducation,
promoting gender equality, empowering women and ensuring environmental sustainabllity.
431 Amount spent during the yoar on: {Amount In Rs. '000')
[ Particulars L _ ¥H-Mar-21 i 31-Mar-20
Amount spent | Amount unpald/ | Total Amount unpaid/ Total
provislon Amount spant provision
Construction R o | .
fa:cuisition of any asset
:’mm" other than 9290.00 821.00 1,850.00 1,196.10 2,325.34 3,621.44
43.2 In case of Section 135(5) unspent amount: {Amount in Rs. '000')
‘ Amount |
deposited In Amount required
Opening Balance Specified Fund of to be spent ;‘;:"':I:P'mr Closing Balance
Sch. Vil within 8 | during the year g the yea
~ ___months
Not Applicable 1.850.00 929.00 921.00
43.3 In case of Section 135(5) excess amount spant
Opening Balance Amount required | Amountspent | Closing Balance
to be spent during the year
during tha year
L Not Agplicable
434  In case of Section 135(6) detalls of ongoing orojects (Amount In Re. '000')
Amount required
Opening Balance to be spant :‘:ou':"”m Closing Balance
. | during the year Hring tha year
With | In Saparate CSR From Company’s | In Separate CSR With in Separats CSR
Company unspent Account Bank Account |unspent Account Company unspent Account
Not Applicable Not Apjlicable 1,850.00 828,00 | §21.00 NIl | 921.00
Note: Closing balance of Rs 821 thousands available with the Company shall be traneferred to an unspent CSR account by end of 30 April 2021.
{Amount In Ra. "000")
43.5
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
Nature of Expense on Corporate soclal responsibility March 2021 March 2020
{Houslng Urban Poor 200.00 | -
Mask Distdbution 729.00 -
Denatlon for halth camp - 89.10
Empowaring Women - -
Raducing the Inequallties faced by scclally and economically weaker
sactlons of the soclety.
- 700.00
Promating education - -
Enhancing vocational skill among diffrently abled children 272.00
Promoting preventive health care and sanitation 135.00
Ensuring Animal welfare | -
| j 020.00 1,106.10 |




Bvatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Maturity analysis of assets and llabilities

| [ __As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Asests V:Iﬂlln After Total WIIhIr! A@r Total
year 1 ysar 1 year 1 g=ar
| Financlal gesata
Cash and cash equivalents 8,74,060.44 8,74,060.44 1,03,023.76 1,03,923.78
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1544545  2,86,309.12  3,01,84457 | 2,08,814.41 2,09,814.41
|Loans 780,754,556 72,97,200.89 80,67,045.14 8,56,424.19 62,27.802.80 68,83,227.00
Other financlal assets 17,172,556 2,040.00 16,212,585 1,525.78 3,785.35 5,321.11
Non financial asssts
Current tax asaets (net) - 3,085.45 3,055.45 - 3,511.65 3,611.65
Deferred tax assets (net) - 28,779.53 28,779.53 - 27.620.65 27,829.65
Invasiment praperty - 250.71 250.71 - 250.71 250.71
Property, plant and equipment - 3,212.18 3.212.18 - 3,188.25 3,166.25
Right of use assat - 8,770.81 9,770.81 - 5,505.63 5,505.63
Other intangible asasets - 43.20 43.20 - 1168.77 11877
Other non financial assets B8,434.52 €6.84 6,501.18 7,186.08 946,31 8,132.39
\Total agsets 17,02857.51 TH7500823 O3 M.785.74 | 57787420 62,72,92522 72.50.78942
'Liabliitles |
Financlal llablilities
Trade payables
- Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - 82.08 - 82.08
enterpreas
- Tolal outstending dues of credltore ather than micro 4,227.11 4,227.11 | 4,021.13 - 4,021.13
enterprises and small enterprisaa
Cther payables 6,591.29 6,891.29 2,539.35 - 2,530.35
Dabt sacurities - 9,22,208.64  9,22,208.54 - 5,26,300.97  5,26,300.87
Borrowings 17,1541400 48,42, T18.72 66,58,134.82 8,84,141.38 421797816 52,02,120.52
Cther financlal llablitiss 30,080.69 3,64120 43,811.00 33,033.31 1,218.58 34,251.87
Non financiat liabilities
Provisions 1,008.72 13,515.05 14,524.77 8680.74 10,112.44 10,873.18
|Other nen financial abiltes =i 7.281.43 - 7.28143 4.460.88 - _ 4450.88
Total lablilties 177449434 8862204681 78.56.778.88 10,28.139 47 55011 57,84,749.88
Net Equity (71,837) 17,460,824  16.74.886.89 {51,285 1517314 1456,040.48 |
_Comparision beetween IRACP and impairment allowamnce made under IND AS 109 as at 31 March 2021 |Amount s In Re. ‘000"
Assatclassiic Gross Loss | Provisions | Difference
Asset Classiication as per atlon as Carrylng Allowances | NetCamying | required as | between Ind
RBI Norma porind AS 100 Amount as per| (Provisions) Amount per RACP AS 108
L 1 - ind AS as requlred norms* provisions and
Performing sassts
Stage 1 77.01,165.13 26,385.18  77,64,779.97 81,611.08 (55.225.93)
iStage 2 | 213378.38 13.476.42 19990106 520.87 12 055.45
|Subtotal 80,114 543,51 | 39,881.58 79,51.581.93 82.132.08 |42 270.48)
Non performing asasts
Subetanderd Stage 3 85,575.74 12,004.26 72,581.48 12,833.14 81.12
Doubitful - upta 1 yaar Stage 3 35,807.62 5,437.20- 30,370.32 9,018.84 (3,582.64)
11p 3 years Stage 3 18,743.21 2,846.07 15,897.14 7.810.52 (4,764.45)
More than 3 yrars Swie 3 4143.42 629.15 351427 | 4174.87 13.645.72|
' ubtotal of doubtful | 144.260.89 2100868 | 12235321 3373837 | (11,3169
Loss Shage 3 — - -
|Subtotel of NPA - 33.738.37 111,831.88
Total Stage 1 77,91,165.13 28,385.16 | 77.,84,779.97 81,811.08 (55,225.83)
Stage 2 2,13,378.38 13,4768.42 1,68,801.88 52087 12,085.45 I
|Stage 3 1.44.260.89 21 606.68 1,22 363.21 33738.37 111,831.88
! ' Total | 814831340 61.768.20 | B0.B7.046.14  1.15170.43 (454,102.17}
* Including addiion pravision as per RBI guidiine
Comparision between IRACP snd Impairment allowanes mads under IND AS 109 as on 31 M-_r_ﬁlgjogu _\Amount & In Rs. ‘000"
Asset Gross Allowances Provisions m: d
Agsot Classification as per ciassification Canying (Provislons) | NetCamying | required as AB 100
RBI Norma ] Amountasper| asrequired | Amount per IRACP provisions and
perind AS 109 Ind AS undo‘rnlild AS : norms* IRACP norms
Performing assats
Stage 1 66,62,413.10 7,202.88  68,85,120.22 21,444.00 (14,161.12)
| Staue 2 114078.79 6.980.85 10709494 | §5824.35 1.158.50 |
Subtotal - 88.09 42880 14,273.7)  67.92.715.18 2726838 |12,994.62} |
Non parforming assets
Subatandard Stage 3 66,636.07 11,805.72 54,830.35 10,110,389 1,696.33
Doubtful - upto 1 year Stage 3 27,699.38 4,767.00 22,672.38 6,804.07 {2,037.07)
11to 3 yeare Siaga 3 15,813.28 2,801.50 13,011.69 7.287.41 (4,486.82)
|Mare than 3 years Stane 3 361.87 64.06 207.51 | _365.73 __1301.87))
|Subtotal of doubtful 1,10.450.30 19.416.37 91.011.83 24.567.80 (EA202M— ==
Loss Siaged - - - - = o
Subtotal of NPA - - . 2456780 | (55T
Total Stage 1 66,92,413.10 7.22.88 | 66,856,120.22 21,444.00 (1251.12)
Stage 2 1,14,075.79 6,980.85 | 1,07.004.84 5,824.36 [{1%56.80
|Stage 3 1.10.460.20 19 438.37 91.011.83 24.567.80 i%: .25
(Total 69,16.938.19 3371210 | 88.03.2:7.00 | 51,235.95 i 1.85)

* Including addition provialon e

o=
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the ysar ended 31 March 2021

48.1 Significant management judgement In applying accounting pelicles and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company‘s financlal statements requires management to make judgements, sstimates and assumptions that effect the reportad
amounis of revenues, expenses, assets and liablitles, and the related disclogures. Actual results may differ from these astimates.

The Management believes that these estimates are prudent and reascnable and are based upon the Management's best knowledge of current events
and actions. Actual results could differ from these estimates and diffsrences between actual rasults and estimates are recognised in the periode In which
the results are known.

This note provides an overview of the areas that Involved a higher degres of Judgement or complexity, and of tems which are more likely to ba materially
adjusted due to estimates and assumptiens tuming out o ba different than those originally assessad.

Recognition of defarred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income agalnst which the
deferred tax assets can be utilised.

48.2 Business madel assessmant

Classification and measurement of financlal assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model test. The Company determines the
business model at a level that reflects how groupe of financial assete are managed together to achleve a particular business oblective. This assessmeant
includes judgement reflacting all relevant evidence Including how the performance of the assets Is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks
that affect the parformance of the assets and how theee are managed ard how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors
financial agsets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive Income that are derescognleed prior to thelr maturity to understand
the raason for their disposal and whether the reasons are conslsient with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring Is part of
tha Company’s continucus assessment of whether the business model for which the remalning financlal assets are held continues to bs appropriate and if
it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Evaluation of Indicators for Impalrment of assots

The evaluatlon of applicability of indicators of Impairment of assets requires assessment of eeveral external and Intamal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Expected credit loss {'ECL")

The measuremant of expected credit loss allowance for financlal assets measured at amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant
assumptions about fulure economic conditions and credit behavior {e.g. likellhood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes
signiicant jJudgements with regard to the following while assessing expected cradit loss:

Determining criteria for significant Increase In credit risk;

Establishing the number and relative welghtings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the associated ECL; and

Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposas of measuring ECL.

Development of ECL model, including the varlous formulae and the cholce of Inputs

it has been tha Company's policy to regularly review lts model In the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary

Provislons

At each balance sheet date basis the management Judgment, changes in facts and legal aspacts, the Company assesses the requirement of provislons
agalnst the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Contingencles:

Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, f any, in respect of
contingencles/claim/litigations against the Company &s it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

48.3 Significant estimates
Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable sssets

Managament reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utllity of the assets.
Unceriainties In thase estimaies relate to technical and economic obsclescence that may change the utillty of assste.

48.4 Dsfined benefit obligation (DBO)

Management's estimate of the DBO Is based on a number of underlying assumptions such as standard rates of Inflation, mortality, discount rate and
anticlpation of future salary Increases. Variation In these assumptions may significantly Impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit axpenses.
The assumptions used are disclosed in Note 38.

48.5 Fair valus measurements
Management applles valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financlal instruments (where active market quotas are not avallable). This

Involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. For further details about
determination of falr value please sea Note 35.

48.8 Determining the lease term of contracts with renswal and termination options — Company as lesses

The Company determines the lease tarm as the non-cancellable term of the lease, tegether with any perlode covered by an option to exigpe iha ‘;':.'.fa. T
Is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any perlods covered by an option to terminaiz-{f= T=g===it4 |s reasonably certaln not to be Eigod, b \\x‘h
= 'p-""_ "_ Sy - -'l.
i |



Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housling Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements for the year sndad 31 March 2021

45.8

The Company has several lease contracts that include extanslon and termination options. The Company applies judgemant In evaluating whether It is
reasonably certaln whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease, That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
Incentive for it to exerclse elther the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term If there Is a
significant event or change In circumstances that ls within Its control and affects fe abliity to exercise or not ta exercles the opticn to renew or to terminate
(.9, construction of significant leasehold Improvemants or significant customisation to the leased asset).

When It is reasonably certaln to exercise extenslon option and not to exerclse termination option, the Company Includes such extended term and Ignore
termination option in determination of lease term.

Leases - Estimating the Incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannct readily determine the interest rate Impliclt in the lease, thersfore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease
llabllities. The Company has taken Indicative rates from its bankers and used them for Ind AS 116 calculation purposes.

Estimation of uncertainty relating to COVID-18 global health pandemic

In assessing the recoverability of loans, the Company has consldered Internal and external sources of Information, including credit reports, economic
forecasts and industry reports. The Company has performed sensitivity analysls on the assumplions used and based on current Indicators of future
economic conditions, the carrying amount of these assets represent the company’s best estimate of the recoverable amounts. As a result of the
uncertalnties resulting from COVID-18, the impact of this pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial
statements and the Company wili continue to monltor any changes to the fulure economic conditions. Also refer note 38.
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporetion Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated Fabruary 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

Capital {0 risk assets ratlo (CRAR")

The follewing table sets forth, for the pericds indicated, the detalls of capltal to risk assets ratio under NHB Guidelines:

As at As at
o 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1) CRAR (%) 36.57% 36.54%
i) CRAR - Tler | CapHal (%) 36.97% 36.35%
lil) CRAR - Tier Il Capltal (%) 0.80% 0.19%
Iv) Amount of subardinated debt ralsed as Tier - Il capttal Nil NIl
v|_Arrount of su:hordinalsd dobt rased 58 Tler - Il capital NIl NIl

Resarve fund under section 29C of NHB Act, 1687

|4 mount In Rs. ‘000’
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory reserve u/s 20C of NHB Act, 1887 1,276.80 1,276.09
b) Amount of speclal ressrve u/a 38(1) (vill} of Income Tax Act, 1861 taken Into account for the 1,19,891.39 1,14,098.42
purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 20C of the NHB Act, 1867

1,21,268.38 1.15,375.41

Addition/ Appropriation/ Withdrawal during the year

Add:
) Amount transferred we 20C of NHB Act, 1887 3,410.98 -
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 38(1) (vill) of Income Tax Act, 1981 taken Into account for the 8,141.09 5,802.97

purposea of Statutory reserve under Section 28C of the NHB Act, 1887

Less:

a) Amount appropriated from Statutory reserve ws 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 - -
b) Amount withdrawn from the special mserve w's 36(1) {vlll} of Income Tax Act, 1861 which has

been taken Into aceount for the purposes of provision u/s 26C of the NHB Act, 1087

Balance at the end of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987 4,687.97 1,278.99
b) Amaunt of speclal resarve ws 38(1) (vill) of Income Tax Act, 1881 taken Into account for the

purposas of Statutory reserve under Section 20C of the NHB Act, 1887 1,28,132.48 1,19,991.30
<l Total 13200044 1,21,208.38
investments

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Yalue of Inveatments
f) Gross value of Investments
{a} In India - -
(b} Outside India -
i} Provision for depreciation
{a) In india
{b} Outsldae Indla
1} Net value of Investments
(a) In Indla
{b) Qutaide indla

Movemant of provision held towards dapreciation on Investments

1) Opaning balance

Ity Add: Provision made during the year

lil) Lesa: write off / written back of excess provision during the year - -
iv] Closing balance - =

Derivativas

Forward rate agresment (FRA) / Interest rate swap (IRS)

The Company has not entered into any transaction In forward rate agreemants and Interest rate swaps during the year ended on 31 March 2021 and 31 March
Exchange traded Interest rate {IR) derivative

The Company has not entered Into any transaction In exchange traded Interest rate derlvatives during year anded on 31 Mar 2021 and 31 Mar 2020.

Securitisation e
The Company has not entered Into any Securitisation end assignment transaciion dq;-g-.l:::r-tf}uggd on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020;_;’5’ Fric

oo 7 A
// \;:\ r'.ﬁx )
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporetion Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Flnance Corporatlon Limited)

Disclosure of detalls as required by Notification No. RB1/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFG.CC.No.120/03.10.138/2020-21 clated February 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financlal Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

861  Unsecurad sdvances

There are no unsecured advances agalnst Intanglble securities such as rights, llcanses, autharlty as collateral security during the year ended on 31 March 2021
and 31 March 2020,

52 Disclosures on Risk Exposurs In Derlvatives
The Company has not entered Into any derivative transaction during the year

53  Disclosure of penalties Imposed by NHB/RBI and other regulators

During the year ended on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Company has not paid any penalty for non-campllance of any provision of the Houslng
Finance Companles (NHB) Directiona, 2010,

54  Rating assigned by credit rating agency and migration of rating
As at 31 March 2021

[[1) Date of Rating ' Z4-hpr20 [ 05-Jan-21 ,
(i Nama of Rating Agency CRISIL Ratinge Limked | CARE Ratin;s Limited |
{lvi Retin; of Products

{a) Long term Bank facllities I CRISIL A+/Stable CARE A+/Stable
|ib] Debentures CRISIL A+/Stable [ CARE A+/Stable

Ic| Short term debt ] CRISIL A1+ [

As at 31 March 2020

(1) Date of Rating | ©8Ju-19 | 05819 | 31-Mar-20
|[1i Mame of Reting Ag=ncy | CRISIL Ratins LimMhed | CARE Ratinas Limited
|ilv] Rating of Products | :

{a: Long term Bank facllities CHISIL A+ Stab= CARE /+/Sizhi= 3
(b} Debentures CRISIL A+ ]
!¢} Short term debt |CRIEIL &1+ {

85 Provisions and contingencles
Amount In Re. ‘000"

551 Break up of ‘Provisions and Gontingencies' shown In the As at As st
Statement of Profit and Loss 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Impairment on financlal Asset
Provision for Standard Aeset - Stage | 19,082.28 3,328.70
Provislon for Standard Asset - Stage [I 6,485.57 {4,230.50)
Provision for non-performing asset (Stage-lil) 8,367.42 5015
Tax sxpaense:
= Cument tax 18,140.00 11,340.92
- Deforred tax 854.20 152.43
-Earller year tax adjustement 372.83 -
Employas banefit
Gratulty expense 3,624.52 3,356.12
Leave encashment 1,836.03 -

535.2 Bresk up of loan and advances and provisions thereon
- (Amount In Re. ‘000"

Housing Loan Non Housl::g Loan
As at As ot As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Standard assets
a) Total outstanding amount 76,88,514.47 86,83,168.23 3,16,942.77 2,13,127.17
b) Provisions made 39,130.77 14,084.30 721.01 200.43
Sub - Standard assets -
&) Total outetanding amount 83,579.28 85,638.51 1,806.45 §97.58
b} Provislons made 12,6901.11 11,766.32 303.15 30.40
Doubtful assets - Category-I - -
a) Total outetanding amount 35,202.60 26,048.08 804.83 858.73
b) Provisions made 5,345.36 4,683.94 91.84 83.08
Doubtful assets — Category-ll -
&) Total outstanding amount 18,403.42 15,537.97 330.79 275.31
b) Provislons made 2,794.47 2,801.59 51.60
Doubtful asssts - Category-lil :
a) Total outstanding amount 4,028.63 260.87 114.79 0.89
b) Provisiona made 811.73 84.08 17.43 -
Loss saspis -
a) Total outstanding amount —— - - -
:L:rlovlaions made = \§ 1 - - - f = —l._':ﬁ}‘“*\

7 o )
a) Total outstanding amount ’? g ™ \\,I 78,27,728.40 67,00,743.64 3.19.990? 2,15,259.48 ‘-.‘I:,
b) Provisions made (S { : 1ol 60.582.43 33.380.21 118548, 33180, 22\
L
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housling Finance Gorporation Limited)

Disclosurs of detalis as required by Notification No. RBLI2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.
Master Directlon-Non-Banking Financlal Company - Housing Company (Reserve B

Centingent llablilities

CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under
ank) Diractions, 2021.

|{Amount Is In Rs. '000'

Contingent Liablliies™

Capltal CommMtments

Undrawn Commitment given to Borrowers

Bank guarantse Issued by Bank Limlted favoring the NHB for refinance facilities
Total

As at As ot
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

11,380.00 11,380.00

11,57,446.00 11,06,536.00
227,500.00 1,87.500.00

13,98.326.00 13.04.415.00

* Disputed income tax demand against which the Company has preferred an appeal befora Commissioner of Income Tax (Appoals)

The Company has not made any draw down from reservas during year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Concentration of public deposits, advances, sxposures and NPA's

Concentration of Public Deposlts { for public Daposit taking/olding HFCs)

The Company do not accept any public deposits and hence the same is not applicable.

Cencentration of loans and advances

{“meunt [s In Rs. '000;

Total [oans and advances to twenty largast bormowsrs

Percenta:;s of Loans and Advances to twen!y la:uaet borrowers o total advances of the HFC

As ot As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1,64,313.31 69,315.82
2.02% 1.00%

Concentration of all axpoaures ( In¢luding off - balance sheet exposure)

{Amount Is In Re. ‘000"

As at As at
= 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total exposure to twanty largest borrowers / customers 2,81,022.69 69,6802.78
Percantace of =xnosures to twenty ja/;est borrawsrs / customers to total es;::sure of the HFC on bormrowers / customers 2.81% 0.87%

Concentration of Non parforming assets (NPA)

|Amount is In Rs. "000"|

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total =«ogure to for ten NPA accounts® 16 669.03 14.034.08

* The exposure Is disclosed at custorner level.

Sectorwise Non performing assets{NPAs)

(~Amount I In Re. 000"

Sectorwise percentage of NPAs to total advances In that sactor As ot

N 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
A Housing loans : 1.80% 1.81%
1 Indlviduals 1.80% 1.61%
2 Bullders/Project loans Nii Nil
3 Corporates NIl NIt
4 Others Nil NIl
B Non housing loans : 0.95% 0.99%
1 Individuals 0.85% 0.99%
2 Bulldere/Project loans Nil Nil
3 Corporates Nil NIl
4 Others NIl NIl

Movement of Non performing assete{NPAs)

i#mount Is In Re. ‘000"

As at As at

o 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(1) Net NPAs to net advancas (%) 1.51% 1.32%
{ll) Movemant of NPAs ( Groes)

a) Opening balance 1,10,450.34 87,651.12
b} Additions during the year ( net) 62,756.74 67,944.68
o) Reductione during the year {28,037.19) {45,145.46)
d) Closaing balance 1,44,280.89 1,10,450.34

(H) Movement of Net NFAs

a) Opening balance

b) Addltions during the year (net}
¢} Reductions during the year

d) Closing balance

{IV} Movemant of provisions for NPAa { excluding provisions on standard aesets)
a) Opening balance

b) Proviglon made during the year {nat)

¢) Reductiona during the year

di Closing balance

91,011.97 72,618.14
53,253.86 55,223.18
{21,802.82) (36,829.33)
1.22,363.1 91,011 .97
T
ﬁ':-’}fﬁq‘\c‘\'\}‘

10,438.37 4 .C15032.08

9,502.88 |/ 12,721.52
(7,034.67) {8,316.13)
21,906.88 || WwAAT
qi.';.
%



Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Disclosure of detalls as required by Notification No. REI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/3.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17,2021 under
Master Direction-Non-Banking Financlal Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

88  Overseas Assets 8 Off-balance Sheat apeclal purpose vehicle (8PVa) sponscred
The Company does not own any overseas aseets es at year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
There are no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored as at ysar ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

859 Disclosure of complainis

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) No. of complaints pending at tha beglnning of the year - -
b) No. of complalints recelved during the year 11 13
¢} No. of complainte redressed during the year 11 13
¢ No. of comylaints pending at the end -
€0  Asset llabllity management (Maturity pattern of certain ems of sssets and llabilities)
. {Amounts in '000')
As at 31 March 2021

Borrowings from  Loans and Investments

banks, financial Advances

institutions and

non-convertibie

debentures
1 day to 7 days 11,767.12 7743233 -
8 day to 14 deys 5,195.36 - -
16 days to 30/31 days 98,205.77 18.272.70 -
Over 1 month and upts 2 months 61,201.83 81,474.22 -
Over 2 montha and upto 3 months 2,86,988.20 77.813.35 -
Qver 3 months and upto 8 months 3,38,007.35 1,99,713.52 -
Over 8 months and upto 1 year 9,06,880.27 3,46,080.52 -
Over 1 year and upto 3 years 31,83,831.37 15,11,102.61 -
Over 3 years and upto 5 years 20,38,233.40 14,39,200.29 -
Over § years s 6.62,883.49 4402 723.86 -
Total 75.80.343.18 81.48.813.40 .
Above disclosure Is given as per RBI Mastsr Directions
—. _|Amounta in ‘000
As at 31 March 2020

Borrowings from  Loans and Investments

banks, financial Advances

Institutions and

non-convertible

debantures

Upto one month 88,886.17 1,38,734.51
Over 1 month and upto 2 months 45,251.80 57,044.50
Ovar 2 months and upto 3 months 43,474.07 57,046.78
Over 3 monthe and upto 6 months 2,83,127.45 1,61,800.98
Over 8 months and upto 1 year 542,323.76 2,91,288.98
Over 1 year and upio 3 years 20,88,436.47 13,36,799.06
Over 3 years and upto 5 years 19,28,436.02 12,90,887.04
Over 5 years and upto 7 yoars 5,03,152.97 11,28,713.10 -
Qver 7 years and upto 10 years 1,71,705.15 12,37,8808.01 -
Over 10 ysars _ 3284783 12 15,817.33 -
Total §7.26,421.40 69,16.839.18 -

Above disclosura is glven as per NHB Master Clreular
Claselfication of assets and liabillles under different maturity buckets Is basad on the eame estimates and asaumptions as used by the Company for compiling

the retum submitted to NHEB.
81 Exposure
81.1 Exposure to Real Estate Soctor
- iAmounts In ‘000"
I [Catagory Current Year | Pravious Yeor

a | Direct Exposure

| |Residentlal Morigages
Lending fully sacured by mortgagas on residential property that Is or will be occupled by the bormower 77,17,749.25 86,90,024.55

_[that Is rented;

Il |Commercial Roal Estats *
Lending secured by morigages on commercial real estetes (office bulldings, retall space,
multipurpose commerclal premises, mult-famlly resldential bulldings, muli-Henarted commerclal 1,08,870.61 9,507.59
premisas, induetrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acqulsition, development and construction,
|ek:.). Exposure would &lso Include non-fund based {NFB) limits; |

Investmonts in Mortgag: Backed Sscurities (MBS) and other securitisad exXponures -

a| Rasldentla|

_|bl Commarcial Real Estate

|Indirect Expozure

Fund based and non-fur based exposures on Natlonal Housing Benk (NHB) and Housing Finance

*Bullder loans given for resldential l
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limlited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Financs Gorporation Limitad)

Disclosure of detalla as required by Notiication No. RBI2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.138/2020-21 dated Fabruary 17,2021 under

Master Direction-Non-Banking Financlal Company - Housing Company {Reserve Bank) Directiona, 2021.

Exposure to Capital Market
The Company does not have any Expasure o Capltal Market es on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

Exposure to group companles engeged In real estate business
Not applicable

Disclosure as required by RBI Circular - RBI / 2019-20/220 DOR No. BP.BC. 3 /21.04.048/2019-20 datad: 17th April, 2020 *COVID19

Regulatory Package - Asset Classification and Provisloning'™:

|fAmounts In

- Particulars

Amount

Reapective amounte In SMA/overdue categories, where the moratordum/deferment was extended, In terms of paragraph
2 and 3; as of 29 February, 2020

1,87,205.08

Resgpective amount where asset classification benefits Is extended
Provisions mede during the Q4FY2020 and Q1FY2021 In terms of paregraph 5;
Provislons adjusted In terms of paragraph 8 of the clrcular and

1,97,266.08,
18,728.51)

Resldual provislon as per para 8 of circular

19,7205 |

Disclosure pursuant to Resarve Bank of Indla notification RBL/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 08,

2020
pertaining to Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress.
- a {Amounts In
Type of Borrower (A) Number of |(B) Exposure to (C) Of (BY, {D} Additional | (E) Increasa In
accounts where accounts aggregate funding provisicns on
resolution plan has| mantioned at | amount of debt | sanctioned, f | account of the
been implementad (A) bafore that was any, Including | Implementation
under thia window | Implementation converied Into between of the resolution
of the plan other sacurities | Invocation of the plan
plan and
Implementation
il:'-'araonal Loans = . = - -
|Corporate p=rsons - | - - - -
Of which. MSMEs i - - - - = 1
Others 1.480.00 8 26 473.556 81.160.81

The Company has classified above restructured accaunts under Stage-l category and recorded axpected credit loss (ECL) as par Ind AS Including additional

ECL provision of Re.1,600.14 thousands. Column E repressnts additional proviglon held on such sccounts as per aforementioned clrcular as at 31 March

2021.

Detalls of financing of parent company products
Not applicable

Detalls of Single Borrower Limit {8GL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) sxcesded by the HFC

The Company has not exceeded the prudentlal exposure limits during the financiat year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

Registration oblained from other financlal sector regulators
The Company Is registerad with the Minlatry of Carporate Affairs other financlal sector regulatora.

Revenue Racognition

There are no such cirzumstancas In which revenue recognition has been pestponed panding the resolution of significant uncertainties.

Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period itams and changes In accounting policias
There are no prior period tems and change in accounting policlas except as reported In the Financial Statements.

Relatod party Transactions

{1} All material franeactions with related parties are disclosed In "Note 33" of the Financlal Statements.

{ily Tha Company has the poilcy on dealing with Related Party Transactions on Its webslte and It Is diaciosed on Its webshte

There were no Instancee of fraud reported during the yeer ended 31 Merch 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Group Structurs
The Company 18 wholly owned subsldlary of Svatantra Holdings Private Limited

Remuneration of Directors

During the year, the Company has not pald any remuneration to it's directors.

iND AS 110 -Consolidated Financlal Statements (CFS) I,f" =,
S0\
The Compeny does not have any subaidlary company and hence, the CFS ie not applicable. I."If 7 ~ ﬁ
¥ |
[ & \
There were no instances of fraud reported during the period ended |I | | ) ||
\! \ /
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation LimHted
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Gorporation Limited)

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No,120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated Fabruary 17,2021 under
Master Directlon-Non-Banking Financlal Company - Housing Company (Raserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

The Govemment of Indla, Ministry of Finance, vide fe notification dated Octaber 23, 2020, announced a schema for COVID-18 Rellef for grant of exgratla
payment of difference between compound Interest and simple Interest for six months to borrowers In spectfied Ioan accounts ("the Scheme”), as per the
sligibliity criteria and other aspects specified thereln and Imespective of whether moratorium as per RBI regulatory package was avalled or not. The Company
hae fmplemented the Scheme end credited the accounts of or remitted amounte fo the eligible borrowers as per the Scheme amounting to Re. 8,877.48
thousands. The Company has filed Its claim for the ex-gratia with Stats Bank of Indla ae per the Scheme and the amount Is yet to be received.

The Parllament has approved the Coda on Saclal Security, 2020 (‘Code') which may Impact the contribution by the Company towards Provident Fund and
Gratulty. The effective date from which the Code and Its provisions wouid be applicable is yet to be notfled and the rules which would provkie the detalls based
on which financlal Impact can be determined are yet to be framed after which the financlal Impact can be ascertained. The Compeny will complete Its
evaluation and will give appropriate Impact, If any, In the financlal statements following the Code becoming effactive and the related rules belng framed and
notifled.

Previous yaar's figures have been re-grouped wherever cansidered necaasary to conform to the current year's presantation.

Evants after reporting date:

There have been no events after the reporting date thet require adjustment/disclosure In these financial statements.
Signature 1 to 78

As per our report of even date attached

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Svatantre Micro Housling Finance Corporation Limited
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Vineet Chatiriio Anll Ghiranla
Managing Diractor Director
Place: Mumbal DIN: 07962531 DIN: 61082719
Date: 18th July, 2021
nef™ ' ,
Tas andsorwala Sahll Mshta
Company Secretary Chlef Financlal Officer
Membership No: A34813
Place: Mumbal

Date: 18th July, 2021





